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XTI Aircraft Company
2209 Green Oaks Lane
Greenwood Village, CO 80121
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Up to $1,069,999.50 in Common Stock at $1.50
Minimum Target Amount: $9,999.00

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: XTI Aircraft Company

Address: 2209 Green Oaks Lane, Greenwood Village, CO 80121
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: September 29, 2009

Terms:
Equity

Offering Minimum: $9,999.00 | 6,666 shares of Common Stock
Offering Maximum: $1,069,999.50 | 713,333 shares of Common Stock
Type of Security Offered: Common Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $1.50

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $450.00

*Maximum Number of Shares Offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See
Bonus info below

Bonus shares based on timing

If you invest in the first 30 days you get 10% bonus shares

If you invest in the second 30 days you get 5% bonus shares

Bonus shares based on amount invested

If you invest over $2,500 you get 5% bonus shares

If you invest over $5,000 you get 10% bonus shares

If you invest over $10,000 you get 15% bonus shares

The 10% Bonus for StartEngine Shareholders

XTI Aircraft Company will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments that

are committed by investors that are eligible for the StartEngine Crowdfunding Inc.
OWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares
they purchase in this offering. For example, if you buy 100 shares of Common Stock at
$1.50 / share, you will receive 110 Common Stock shares, meaning you'll own 110
shares for $150. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be
determined by rounding down to the nearestwhole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investors eligibility period. Investors eligible
for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company
surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest



should room in the offering become available if prior investments are cancelled or fail.

Investors will only receive a single bonus, which will be the highest bonus rate they
are eligible for.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview

XTI is an aircraft manufacturer that is developing a “vertical takeoff airplane” - the
TriFan 600. This first-of-its-kind fixed-wing airplane combines features of a private jet
allowing high speed travel over long distances in comfort, with the capability to take
off and land like a helicopter. A primary driver of why people choose to fly privately is
the time they save traveling versus flying commercially. XTI analyzed the market for a
vertical takeoff airplane. It determined that existing aircraft are unable to save as
many travel hours as the TriFan 600, which potentially reduces total trip times by as
much as half. XTI believes that offering a product that reaches over 20 times the
number of U.S. airports than the airlines, over three times the number of airports than
business jets can fly into, that departs and lands in remote locations without an
airstrip, and translates to significant time savings, could result in a successful business
within a multi-billion dollar industry.

Background

XTIl is an early-stage aircraft manufacturer that is creating a revolutionary solution for
the business aviation industry. Based in Denver, Colorado, the company’s mission is
to develop innovative solutions to universal business aviation problems by enabling
true point-to-point air travel over long distances.

Almost 84% of organizations that use business aircraft identify reducing total trip
times or reaching remote locations not served by scheduled airlines as primary
reasons for using business aircraft - both dominant features of the TriFan 600.

Our vertical takeoff airplane has unique advantages over existing private airplanes
which still require time-consuming trips to and from a limited number of airports, and
over helicopters which fly at much slower speeds, significantly shorter distances, and
in less comfort than typical business jets. We are rethinking how people travel by
developing an aircraft that combines a helicopter’s ability to take off and land from
almost anywhere, with the speed and range of a private jet. The TriFan 600 will offer
true point-to-point travel over longer distances - greatly reducing total travel time by
departing from or arriving into locations that are much closer to the customer’s point
of departure and/or destination, including remote locations - almost eliminating time
spent driving to and from an airport, with the potential of adding back hours to those
whose time is valued by the number of meetings or destinations they canreachin a
single day.

TriFan 600



The latest aircraft technology and materials have become available commercially and
have advanced tremendously over the past 55 years, including advances in turboshaft
engines, which make them lighter, more powerful, more reliable, and more fuel
efficient, as well as advanced composite structures making aircraft lighter, and digital
computer technology which greatly improves controllability. These advances,
combined with the TriFan’s unique hybrid-electric propulsion system, which takes full
advantage of advances in battery and electric motor technologies, and the 21st century
innovation of XTI, have resulted in a fixed- wing ducted fan VTOL aircraft that the
Company believes will be fully functional and practical, with competitive speed,
range, and comfort for a pilot plus five passengers, and a substantial payload
capability.

In designing the TriFan 600, we identified certain goals and guidelines for the
performance and capabilities for the airplane, including:

« Begin with a proven fixed-wing airplane configuration (not a rotorcraft platform),
and develop ducted fan technology for vertical take-off and landing, because: (a)
ducted fans are safer and more compact than helicopter rotors, (b) the aircraft will be
able to achieve the speed, range, comfort, and the other advantages of a fixed-wing
aircraft; and (c) fixed-wing aircraft are safer and easier to operate than conventional
rotorcraft.

« Use currently available components to create a hybrid-electric drive system that will
result in business aircraft performance, low procurement cost, low operating cost.

« Create a sleek luxury aircraft which will seat six people, cruise at 350 miles per hour,
and will have a range competitive with light turboprop fixed -wing business aircraft on
one tank of fuel, and will out-perform any helicopter over distance.

» Minimize downwash from the fans so the aircraft can land and take off from existing
helipads and driveways, and other paved surfaces.

« Design the aircraft with sufficient redundancy in the critical components to
maximize safety and increase the likelihood of securing FAA certification.

« Incorporate the most advanced technology and materials available, including fly-by-
wire, all-composite carbon-fiber airframe, computer-assisted take-off and landing,
and the most advanced state- of-the-art pilot- friendly safety technologies available to
maximize safety and to provide the ultimate flying experience for the pilot and
passengers.

« Design the aircraft to achieve maximum balance, control, and safety during vertical
takeoff and landing and during transition to and from VTOL, through the basic
location and configuration of the lifting fans and by advanced computer- assisted
avionics.

» Design the aircraft’s exterior and interior to be physically/aesthetically attractive
and to provide maximum comfort, luxury and convenience to the passengers.



As a result of the advances in materials, computers, engines, batteries and other
technologies over the past few decades, combined with our innovative team, we
accomplished all of the above objectives in the conceptual design of the TriFan 600
and are now advancing these objectives in preliminary design engineering.

Production Plan and Suppliers

XTI intends to use a horizontally integrated manufacturing strategy whereby the
company maintains control of all planning, design and final assembly aspects of the
process, but outsources the manufacture of the vast majority of components (i.e.,
fuselage, engines, transmission, avionics, landing gear, etc.). XTI would only seek to
design and manufacture a limited number of certain critical components, if any.

We intend to utilize the professional networks of our executive team, gained from
decades of experience in the industry, to secure favorable supply agreements with
leading manufactures. These suppliers will design and fabricate components to XTI’s
design specifications for incorporation into a final product. The majority of these
components will be largely off-the-shelf systems used in other aircraft, with only
limited customization or design features that are specifically required for the TriFan
600.

Under this plan, the company intends to focus its efforts on the most critical
components for our success, while enjoying cost savings from using specialists in
areas that are not as critical or customized. This will also allow the company to choose
between multiple suppliers, reducing any potential dependence on a small set of
suppliers.

Aviation Regulations

In the U.S., civil aviation is regulated by the Federal Aviation Administration (the
“FAA™), which controls virtually every aspect of flight from pilot licensing to aircraft
design and construction. The FAA requires that every civilian aircraft that flies in the
U.S. must carry a valid type certificate and airworthiness certificate issued by the FAA
or a foreign civil aviation authority.

The company will seek to obtain approval for the design of the TriFan 600 by obtaining
a standard Type Certificate under the Federal Aviation Regulations. The FAA will
conduct extensive testing and analysis of the company’s TriFan 600 to determine the
safety, stability, reliability and performance of the aircraft and that the aircraft
complies with the applicable airworthiness standards for the TriFan 600’s category of
airplane. If the TriFan 600 is approved by the FAA, XTI will be issued a type certificate
for it.

The FAA also issues standard airworthiness certificates to each aircraft that is
manufactured in accordance with an approved design or type certificate. Rather than
test each aircraft that is built, the FAA allows manufacturers to prove that their
manufacturing process and quality control system produces conforming aircraft each
time. Only a company that owns a type certificate is entitled to this authorization,



called a production certificate. If the FAA approves of XTI’s manufacturing process,
the company will be issued a production certificate and each aircraft manufactured by
XTI in accordance with the type certificate will receive an airworthiness certificate.

The process of obtaining a valid type certificate, production certificate and
airworthiness certificate for the TriFan 600 will take several years. XTI is not
permitted to deliver commercially produced aircraft to civilian customers until
obtaining FAA certification, which effectively means that no significant revenue will
be generated from civilian aircraft sales to fund operations until that time. Any delay
in the certification process will negatively impact the company by requiring additional
funds to be spent on the certification process and by delaying the company’s ability to
sell aircraft.

In addition to the FAA, operation of the TriFan 600 will be regulated by various state,
county and municipal agencies. Specifically, flight of the TriFan 600 will be regulated
by the FAA, while the ability to take off and land will be governed by the FAA and
various zoning restrictions imposed by non-federal agencies in each location where an
owner of the TriFan 600 intends to operate. These restrictions will vary by location and
may limit the TriFan 600 to landing in already zoned areas. However, there are
currently over 5,000 helipads in the U.S. where helicopters are already allowed to land.
The company expects that the TriFan 600 will also be able to land legally and safely in
these locations and at thousands of other paved areas or grassy areas, as long as it’s
safe and legal, as well as smaller general aviation airports unavailable to jets. Unlike
jet aircraft, the TriFan 600 is not limited by runway length, clear landing approaches,
and the sophistication of the electronic landing aids that serve larger general aviation
airports. The TriFan 600 is both VTOL (vertical takeoff and landing) capable and STOL
(short takeoff and landing capable). It will be able to take off and land from thousands
of locations, thereby making the TriFan 600 much more versatile and able to use
thousands of privately-owned locations in the U.S. and the world (driveways, lots, job
sites, and other paved surfaces) that will not all be limited by local regulations. As a
result, the company expects there will be sufficient locations for the TriFan 600 to
take off and land.

Intellectual Property

We have sought to protect the intellectual property of the company through the use of
patents, copyrights, trademarks, and trade secrets. Protection is supported by patent
and copyright laws. Employee and third-party consultants have signed non-disclosure
agreements with the company to further protect its proprietary rights. The company is
continuing to develop intellectual property, and it intends to aggressively protect its
position in key technologies. The company owns several trademarks protecting the
company’s name and logo, as well as extensive data, engineering analyses, and other
intellectual property.

The company’s patent and patent applications cover various embodiments of a vertical
take-off and landing aircraft. In general terms, a “utility patent” protects the way an
article is used and works, while a “design patent” protects the way an article looks.



The company is seeking broad patent protection in both respects. We have been
granted a design patent titled “VTOL aircraft”, also identifiable as publication number
D741247. Also, US Patent 9,676,479 was issued on June 13, 2017. This utility patent
covers the engineering and mechanical operation of the aircraft.

Furthermore, the company has filed several foreign patent applications where the
aircraft will be sold and widely used, and received a utility patent from the Japanese
Patent Office in 2019. Legal counsel also filed a Patent Cooperation Treaty (“PCT”)
application that claims priority back to the filing date for the provisional patent
application. The PCT currently covers 141 countries that can be designated for
protection, including a European and African patent.

David Brody, founder and Chairman of XTI, developed the TriFan 600 configuration
and basic performance objectives, filed for the patents. Dr. Dennis Olcott, XTI’s
former Senior Vice President for Engineering and Chief Engineer, is co-inventor on
certain patent applications. Mr. Brody and Dr. Olcott have assigned all patents, patent
applications and other intellectual property to XTI.

Litigation

The company settled a previous law suit, in which Answer Engineering LLC (“Answer”,
partly owned by Dr. Olcott) filed a claim against the company in December 2017
alleging breach of contract for XTI’s failure to pay certain invoices, and in which XTI
filed a counter claim against Answer for Answer’s breach of contract for its failure to
perform various engineering services. The settlement resolved these matters and only
requires XTI to pay amounts already accrued in the company’s financials.

Competitors and Industry

The TriFan 600 potentially competes with a variety of aircraft manufactured in the
United States and abroad. Further, XTI could face competition from competitors of
whom XTI is not aware that have developed or are developing technologies that will
offer alternatives to the TriFan 600. Competitors could develop an aircraft that
renders the TriFan 600 less competitive than XTI believes it will become. Many
existing potential competitors are well-established, have or may have longer-standing
relationships with customers and potential business partners, have or may have
greater name recognition, and have or may have access to significantly greater
financial, technical and marketing resources. Although XTI is unaware of any other
manufacturer developing an FAA-certified, light, fixed-wing, civil VTOL aircraft with
performance similar to that of the TriFan 600, it is possible that another aircraft
manufacturer is doing so in secret.

The Market

The business aviation market is a global market that focuses on high net worth
individuals and companies as its primary customer base. These users place a
significant premium on the value of their time and have demonstrated a willingness to
pay for the time-saving features that private aviation can deliver. By avoiding long



security lines at commercial airports and eliminating the need to arrive at least one
hour prior to departure, often combined with the ability to utilize airports or landing
strips that are closer to their ultimate destination, private aircraft users are able to
dramatically reduce the total time of a trip. Business aircraft also offer individuals the
flexibility to determine their own schedule and travel itinerary.

As a result of these time saving and convenience factors, high net worth individuals
and businesses purchased an estimated 6,125 aircraft between 2004 and 2013, valued
at over $161 billion according to JetNet iQ. This represents an average annual aircraft
volume for light, medium and large private aircraft of approximately 612 aircraft
deliveries and an annual market value of over $16 billion. JetNet iQ forecasted that
this market will grow by roughly 3%-4% per year over the next twenty years.

XTI attended the National Business Aviation Association (‘NBAA™) trade show in
October 2017, and the Ft. Lauderdale International Boat Show in November 2017. As a
result of those and other efforts, XTI has executed aircraft order agreements and taken
deposits for the delivery of 81 aircraft. These existing aircraft orders represent the
potential for roughly $526 million of future revenue and validate the demand for this
revolutionary aircraft.

The deposits serve to prioritize orders when the aircraft becomes available for
delivery. Customers making deposits are not obligated to purchase aircraft until they
execute a definitive purchase agreement. Customers may request return of their
deposit any time up until the execution of a purchase agreement. While these deposits
represent the potential for roughly $526 million of future revenue, that revenue may
not be eamed for many years, or at all.

Total addressable market

We expect that existing owners of business aircraft will be the primary customer for
the TriFan 600. While some individuals and businesses that do not currently own an
aircraft will be interested in a TriFan 600, we have excluded these new owners from
our analysis of the addressable market for conservatism. Among existing owners, a
significant number own both airplanes and helicopters. We will focus our initial
efforts on these dual owners because they have demonstrated a demand for both
vertical lift capabilities and for the speed, range and comfort of a business jet. Because
of the way aircraft are generally owned or titled, the number of aircraft owned by dual
owners is not readily available at this time.

There are currently over 61,000 business airplanes and helicopters in operation
worldwide. North America accounts for more than half of the total existing market and
annual aircraft deliveries in the world.



TriFan 600 addresses primary market driver of reducing total trip time

The industry’s leading trade organization, NBAA, often reports that decisions to
utilize business aviation depend on a variety of factors, including the unavailability of
commercial airline service, both at the site of origin and travel destinations; the
number of sites to be visited in a single day; the requirement to move vital assets
rapidly; and a host of other considerations focused on traveler time savings. (1) As
illustrated in the table below, reducing total transportation time amounts to 84% of
reasons for why business aircraft are used. Surveys conducted by other industry
sources, such as Business Jet Traveler magazine, have similarly reported that the two
most important reasons readers cite for why they choose to fly privately are to save
time, and for service to destinations not served by airlines.

No traditional airplane or helicopter can fully serve the needs of executive travelers,
because neither of them alone or in combination can fly its passengers directly from
point A to point B with the same speed, range or operational flexibility as the TriFan
600. With TriFan 600, executive travelers will have the ability to bypass highways and
runways, lifting up from any helipad or helipad-sized paved surface, and proceeding
directly to their destination, they could potentially save hundreds of hours a year,
achieve more, and avoid missing what’s important.

The TriFan 600 will help individuals and business executives reduce total travel time
dramatically. The figure below shows how the TriFan 600 can save an executive nearly
half his or her total trip time for a 500 nautical mile trip, even compared to a business
jet, because of the TriFan 600’s ability to reduce or eliminate time wasted traveling to
and from airports. We chose a 500 nautical mile trip as the comparison point because
the average trip length for most flights in private aircraft is less than this distance,
even if the aircraft is capable of going further without the need to stop to refuel.

Based on the company’s estimates, TriFan 600 will be able to deliver these impressive
time savings while still being able to accomplish the vast majority of flight plans flown
with private aviation. The table below shows the average flight length flown in private
aircraft by class of aircraft. This data was provided by ARGUS International. This
clearly illustrates that the TriFan 600 can provide the range capability that most users
of private aviation require. While the TriFan 600 won’t be able to accomplish all
missions conducted with private aviation, we believe that our ability to cover most
requirements while also improving the convenience and time savings of customers
will allow us to capture a meaningful share of the existing market of over 60,000
business aircraft.

Tri-Fan is priced competitively with what business aircraft owners are paying

Currently, the only way for individuals using business aircraft to get from one place to
another in a shorter period of time is by flying in a faster aircraft. Generally, the larger
the size of the aircraft, the faster it can travel, and the more expensive the aircraft.
Business jet owners consistently pay millions of dollars more for increased speed
(among other features). However, as shown in the figure above, more speed does not
always equal more time. True time savings can only be achieved by taking off



vertically like a helicopter, cruising at altitudes and speeds of airplanes, and landing
vertically near a final destination.

The TriFan 600 design combines the best aspects of each platform (airplane and
helicopter), enabling what the company believes will be a dramatic reduction in total
trip time, at a price point that is competitive to market prices. Purchase prices for
aircraft in this market can range up to $18 million, with a high correlation between
speed and cost. There is a clear connection between the ability to save time through
faster transportation and a willingness to pay more for this capability.

Achievable market share

It is difficult to compare the TriFan 600 directly to existing aircraft and historical sales
levels of similar aircraft because there is no aircraft with the same performance
capabilities as the TriFan 600. In order to estimate the number of aircraft we believe
we can sell each year, we conducted a market analysis based on the TriFan 600’s
performance characteristics relative to existing alternatives.

To conduct the analysis, we identified the likely objections that buyers of a particular
type of aircraft would have when considering the purchase of a TriFan 600. We then
estimated what percentage of those buyer segments would object to the TriFan 600
because of each of the considerations (i.e., those that would object because it could
not seat enough passengers or because it could not fly a long enough distance, etc.).
This resulted in a percentage of each buyer segment that would not object to the
TriFan 600 relative to aircraft in that class, leaving the expected portion of each
market that we could capture.

With the potential share for each market estimated, we then analyzed market forecast
data from Teal Group, an industry leading market forecasting company. This data
identified the number of units, by type of aircraft, which are expected to be sold over
the next several years. Applying the market share of each aircraft type we expect to
capture to the number of aircraft expected to be delivered in each category per year,
we estimated that we can expect to sell between 85 - 95 aircraft each year. This
analysis only considered sales to civilian users, and does not include military or
commercial use forecasts.

After completing our internal analysis, our management team, board of directors,
aviation marketing companies and other industry participants all reviewed those
findings and provided input as to the reasonableness of the company’s conclusion or
expectation of selling 85-95 TriFan 600 aircraft each year. Based on the totality of the
data and those conversations, we feel that this estimate is achievable. However, for
the purpose of creating our business plan, we have assumed a lower more conservative
number of annual aircraft deliveries.

Current Stage and Roadmap

XTI has had no net income, only a six-year operating history, and no revenues
generated since its inception. There is no assurance that XTI will ever be profitable or



generate sufficient revenue to pay dividends to the holders of the shares. XTI does not
believe it will be able to generate revenues without successfully completing the
certification of its proposed TriFan 600 aircraft, which involves substantial risk. As a
result, XTI is dependent upon the proceeds of this Offering and additional fund raises
to continue the TriFan 600 preliminary design and other operations. Even if XTI is
successful in this Offering, XTI's proposed business will require significant additional
capital infusions. Based on XTI's current estimates, XTI will require a minimum of
$175 million in capital to fully implement its proposed business plan. If planned
operating levels are changed, higher operating costs encountered, lower sales revenue
received, more time is needed to implement the plan, or less funding received from
customer deposits or sales, more funds than currently anticipated may be required.
Additional difficulties may be encountered during this stage of development, such as
unanticipated problems relating to development, testing, and initial and continuing
regulatory compliance, vendor manufacturing costs, production and assembly, and the
competitive and regulatory environments in which XTI intends to operate. If
additional capital is not available when required, if at all, or is not available on
acceptable terms, XTI may be forced to modify or abandon its business plan.

Engineering and Development to Date

XTI expects that the TriFan 600 will be a fully certified, high performance, civilian
fixed-wing vertical takeoff airplane. We completed initial configuration and
engineering analysis for the TriFan 600 in April 2014, and began initial hover tests in
May 2019 of our 65% scale flying prototype. Progress here has been affected by
constraints on our resources. In the first quarter of 2017, we revised the propulsion
system to become a hybrid-electric aircraft, with one smaller turbine engine combined
with three generators, two electric motors in each of the three fans and battery power
packs which will be charged by the turbine engine. We began construction of a flying,
65% scale proof of concept aircraft in 2018 which we expect to continue to test in
2019. We intend to fly a full scale proof of concept aircraft within two years of raising
the first $25 million from the sale of securities. Following the full scale proof of
concept, XTI will seek certification with the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”™),
which we expect will take an additional 4-5 years to complete. If the company is able
to secure FAA certification of the TriFan 600 and completion of all phases up to and
including commercial production, we believe that this aircraft will be the first civil,
FAA-certified vertical takeoff airplane in aviation history.

Technology

XTI is not developing new technology; rather, the TriFan 600 is an evolution in the
application of existing technology. Our proprietary patented design and configuration
primarily utilizes advanced technologies, components and systems which are widely in
use throughout the civil aviation industry today. As a result, most of the underlying
technology is well established and understood, which we expect will reduce the risk
associated with manufacturing and certifying the TriFan 600.

Over 50 years ago, the US military funded the development of vertical takeoff and



landing airplanes using rotating, ducted fans, much like the TriFan 600. These
included the Bell X-22 and the Doak VZ-4, which had fixed wings. Both of these planes
were capable of taking off vertically, transitioning to forward flight, and then
transitioning to a hover before landing vertically. However, neither of these aircraft
went into commercial production because the technology available at the time limited
the performance capabilities of the aircraft, making them economically unviable and
difficult to operate.

Over the past 50 years, aircraft technologies and materials have advanced
significantly. Current engines are dramatically lighter, more fuel-efficient, and
provide greater power performance than prior versions. Composite materials are
available that allow aircraft structures to be much lighter and stronger than
previously. And finally, advances in software technology allow airplanes to be
controlled largely by computers, increasing controllability, reliability, and safety. All
of these advanced technologies are widely used in today’s civil aviation market. By
combining these technologies with our patented proprietary design in a unique and
revolutionary configuration, we believe the TriFan 600 will be a commercially
successful product for the business aviation market. In other words, the technology of
today has caught up with the long-held idea or concept of a vertical takeoff airplane.

Research and Development

The company’s primary activity to date has been to conduct research and development
associated with our core vertical takeoff and landing configuration for the TriFan 600.
This includes the completion of our preliminary design, computational fluid dynamics,
executing our patent and IP strategy, developing additional technical capabilities and
analysis, and other R&D activities to determine the feasibility of our financial and
technical aspects of our aircraft and program. In addition, in 2018 we completed
construction of our 65% scale proof of concept aircraft to test the hover and transition
to forward flight capabilities of our design. We began initial test flights in 2019. To
date, the company has expended over $3.0 million on engineering, marketing, legal,
and a variety of other general and administrative costs.

The Team
Officers and Directors

Name: David Brody

David Brody's current primary role is with Hogan Lovells US LLP. David Brody
currently services Up to 10 hours per week, but can surge to more as needed. Consult
on an as needed basis. hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Founder, Chairman, President, Secretary and Director
Dates of Service: October 01, 2009 - Present
Responsibilities: Consultant. No cash or equity compensation. Currently the



majority stockholder. Spends up to 10 hours per week working with XTI, but can
surge to more on an as needed basis.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Hogan Lovells US LLP
Title: Senior Counsel
Dates of Service: January 01, 2013 - Present
Responsibilities: Practicing Law in the firm's finance department.

Name: Robert |. LaBelle
Robert |. LaBelle's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Chief Executive Officer and Director
Dates of Service: February 01, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: CEO. Pursuant to a consulting agreement, Robert received
$300,000 in salary in 2017 and $200,000 in salary in 2018. Robert was also
granted stock option equal to 3% of the outstanding shares of the company, on a
fully-diluted basis. There are also certain cash and equity bonus provisions tied
to the performance of the company and its fundraising activities.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: AgustaWestland North America
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Dates of Service: November 01, 2013 - January 01, 2017
Responsibilities: Lead the company.

Name: Andrew Woglom

Andrew Woglom 's current primary role is with Yorkshire Equity. Andrew Woglom
currently services Up to 10 hours per week, but can surge to more as needed. Consult
on an as needed basis. hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer
Dates of Service: December 01, 2014 - Present
Responsibilities: Manages the company's financial wellbeing. Compensated
through Acuity Advisors, LLC (Mr.Woglom as a principal). Company has paid
Acuity Advisors, LLC a total of $37,482 as and owes $34,500 as of Dec. 31, 2018.
Spends up to 10 hours per week working with XTI, but can surge to more on an



as needed basis.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Yorkshire Equity
Title: Partner
Dates of Service: May 01, 2014 - Present
Responsibilities: Source investments in lower middle-market companies in
North America.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Unimacts Global, LLC
Title: VP Of Corporate Development
Dates of Service: December 01, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: VP Of Corporate Development

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: GetThru
Title: CFO
Dates of Service: August 01, 2016 - Present
Responsibilities: CFO

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Full Tilt Performance
Title: CFO
Dates of Service: December 01, 2015 - Present
Responsibilities: CFO

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Dry Systems Technologies.
Title: CFO
Dates of Service: April 01, 2015 - Present
Responsibilities: CFO

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Rampart Aviation, LLC
Title: CFO
Dates of Service: August 01, 2009 - Present



Responsibilities: CFO

Name: Charles Johnson

Charles Johnson's current primary role is with Aero Electric Aircraft Corporation.
Charles Johnson currently services Consult on an as needed basis. hours per week in
their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: December 01, 2014 - Present
Responsibilities: Board Member; only equity compensation in the form of stock
options. Received 250,000 options in 2017, exercisable at $1.00 per share.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Aero Electric Aircraft Corporation
Title: President and COO
Dates of Service: August 01, 2016 - September 30, 2019
Responsibilities: President and COO

Name: Paul Willard

Paul Willard's current primary role is with Storm Ventures. Paul Willard currently
services Consult on an as needed basis. hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: June 01, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Board Member. Only equity based compensation.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Subtraction Capital
Title: Founding Partner, Partner, and General Partner
Dates of Service: July 01, 2013 - December 01, 2017
Responsibilities: Founding Partner, Partner, and General Partner.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Storm Ventures
Title: Partner
Dates of Service: January 01, 2018 - Present



Responsibilities: Partner

Name: Robert Denehy

Robert Denehy's current primary role is with Aerogulf Services. Robert Denehy
currently services Consult on as needed basis hours per week in their role with the
Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: October 01, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Director

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Aerogulf Services
Title: General Manager
Dates of Service: July 01, 1995 - Present
Responsibilities: General Manager

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product,
that people think it’s a better option than a competing product, or that we will able to
provide the service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still attract
business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk
overpaying for your investment.



The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any Common Stock purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject to SEC
limitations of transfer. This means that the stock/note that you purchase cannot be
resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you are transferring the
stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of an offering
registered with the Commission, to a member of your family, trust created for the
benefit of your family, or in connection with your death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment there will be restrictions on how you can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these
securities and there may never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities
in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by
an existing player in the aircraft industry. However, that may never happen or it may
happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

The Company, is offering Common Stock in the amount of up to $1,070,000 in this
offering, and may close on any investments that are made. Even if the maximum
amount is raised, the Company is likely to need additional funds in the future in order
to grow, and if it cannot raise those funds for whatever reason, including reasons
relating to the Company itself or the broader economy, it may not survive. If the
Company manages to raise only the minimum amount of funds, sought, it will have to
find other sources of funding for some of the plans outlined in “Use of Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.
We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital
requirements as we grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when
we need it, we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth
plans, or take some other action. Issuing more equity may require bringing on
additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our
equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership
percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable
to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will
choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a
return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced
to cease our sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company
performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value of your
investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in
the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Common Stock.
Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating



results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such
designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms
of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to the holders
of Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to
be more favorable than the terms of your investment, and possibly a lower purchase
price per share.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current
business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best
estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by
our independent accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions which
management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management's
control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

We may never have an operational product or service

It is possible that there may never be an operational TriFan 600 or that the product
may never be used to engage in transactions. It is possible that the failure to release
the product is the result of a change in business model upon Company’s making a
determination that the business model, or some other factor, will not be in the best
interest of Company and its stockholders/members/creditors.

Some of our products are still in prototype phase and might never be operational
products

It is possible that there may never be an operational product or that the product may
never be used to engage in transactions. It is possible that the failure to release the
product is the result of a change in business model upon the Company’s making a
determination that the business model, or some other factor, will not be in the best
interest of the Company and its stockholders.

Developing new products and technologies entails significant risks and uncertainties
We are currently in the research and development stage and have only manufactured a
prototype for our aircraft. Delays or cost overruns in the development of our aircraft
and failure of the product to meet our performance estimates may be caused by,
among other things, unanticipated technological hurdles, difficulties in
manufacturing, changes to design and regulatory hurdles. Any of these events could



materially and adversely affect our operating performance and results of operations.

Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights

The Common Stock that an investor is buying has voting rights attached to them.
However, you will be part of the minority shareholders of the Company and therefore
will have a limited ability to influence management's decisions on how to run the
business. You are trusting in management discretion in making good business
decisions that will grow your investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation
of our company, you will only be paid out if there is any cash remaining after all of the
creditors of our company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow your investment.

This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amended to our Form C with
the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the
right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected

Our growth projections are based on an assumption that with an increased advertising
and marketing budget our products will be able to gain traction in the marketplace at
a faster rate than our current products have. It is possible that our new products will
fail to gain market acceptance for any number of reasons. If the new products fail to
achieve significant sales and acceptance in the marketplace, this could materially and
adversely impact the value of your investment.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies who currently have products on
the market and/or various respective product development programs. They may have
much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They
may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than
us, or superior products than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that
competitors will render our technology or products obsolete or that the products
developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It
should further be assumed that competition will intensify.



We are an early stage company and have limited revenue and operating history

The Company has a short history, few customers, and effectively no revenue. If you
are investing in this company, it’s because you think that the TriFan 600 is a good
idea, that the team will be able to successfully market, and sell the product or service,
that we can price them right and sell them to enough peoples so that the Company
will succeed. Further, we have never turned a profit and there is no assurance that we
will ever be profitable.

We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly

One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company's
owns several trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain names, and trade secrets. We
believe one of the most valuable components of the Company is our intellectual
property portfolio. Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the
rights owned by the Company. The Company intends to continue to protect its
intellectual property portfolio from such violations. It is important to note that
unforeseeable costs associated with such practices may invade the capital of the
Company.

Our ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government
regulation which can be subject to change at any time

Our ability to sell product is dependent on the outside government regulation such as
the FAA (Federal Aviation Administration) and other relevant government laws and
regulations. The laws and regulations concerning the selling of product may be subject
to change and if they do then the selling of product may no longer be in the best
interest of the Company. At such point the Company may no longer want to sell
product and therefore your investment in the Company may be affected.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business
We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations,
advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties
will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their
work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse
to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’
operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their
performance.

The company has realized significant operating losses to date and expects to incur
losses in the future

The company has operated at a loss since inception, and these losses are likely to
continue. XTI's net losses for year-end 2018 and 2017 were $3,798,753 and $3,192,836,
respectively. Until the company achieves profitability, it will have to seek other
sources of capital in order to continue operations.

There is a possibility that we may not be able to continue as a “going concern”



We have adopted ASU No. 2014-15, “Disclosure of Uncertainties about the Entity’s
Ability to Continue as a Going Concern.” We have concluded that there is an
uncertainty about our ability to continue as a going concern and our independent
auditors have incorporated into their opinion accordingly. This opinion could
materially limit our ability to raise additional funds by issuing new debt or equity
securities or otherwise. If we fail to raise sufficient capital when needed, we will not
be able to complete our proposed business plan. As a result, we may have to liquidate
our business and investors may lose their investments. Our ability to continue as a
going concern is dependent on our ability to successfully accomplish our plan of
operations described herein, obtain financing and eventually attain profitable
operations. Investors should consider our independent auditor’s comments when
deciding whether to invest in the company.

We are controlled by our Chairman, whose interests may differ from those of the other
shareholders.

As of the date of this Offering Circular, David Brody owns the majority of shares of the
company’s common stock, and his majority ownership might continue even after the
issuance of the shares. Therefore, Mr. Brody is now and could be in the future in a
position to elect or change the members of the board of directors and to control XTI’s
business and affairs including certain significant corporate actions, including but not
limited to acquisitions, the sale or purchase of assets and the issuance and sale of XTI’
shares. XTI also may be prevented from entering into transactions that could be
beneficial to the other holders of the shares without Mr. Brody’s consent. Mr. Brody’s
interests might differ from the interests of other shareholders.

The development period for the TriFan 600 will be lengthy

Even if it meets the development schedule, XTI does not expect to deliver certified
aircraft until 2023 at the earliest. As a result, the receipt of significant revenues is not
anticipated until that time and may occur later than projected. XTI depends on
receiving large amounts of capital and other financing to complete its development
work, with no assurance that XTI will be successful in completing its development
work or becoming profitable.

Delays in aircraft delivery schedules or cancellation of orders may adversely affect the
company’s financial results

As XTI continues its pre-sales program which includes refundable deposits for TriFan
600 aircraft. The deposits do not create an obligation on the part of the customer to
purchase an aircraft, and a customer may receive the full return of their deposit upon
request. Some or all customers might not transition to non-refundable purchase
contracts until prior to aircraft delivery, if at all. Aircraft customers might respond to
weak economic conditions by canceling orders, resulting in lower demand for our
aircraft and other materials, such as parts, or services, such as training, which the
company expects to generate revenue. Such events would have a material adverse
effect on XTTI’s financial results.

Developing new products and technologies entails significant risks and uncertainties
XTI is currently in the preliminary engineering design phase of the TriFan 600. Delays



or cost overruns in the development or certification of the TriFan 600 and failure of
the product to meet its performance estimates could affect the company’s financial
performance. Delays and increased costs may be caused by unanticipated
technological hurdles, changes to design or failure on the part of XTI’s suppliers to
deliver components as agreed.

Operations could be adversely affected by interruptions of production that are beyond
the company’s control

XTI intends to produce the TriFan 600 and its derivatives using systems, components
and parts developed and manufactured by third- party suppliers. XTI’s aircraft
development and production could be affected by interruptions of production at such
suppliers. Such suppliers may be subject to additional risks such as financial problems
that limit their ability to conduct their operations. If any of these third parties
experience difficulties, it may have a direct negative impact on XTI.

The company will require FAA certification

Certification by the Federal Aviation Administration will be required for the sale of
the TriFan 600 in the civil or commercial market in the United States. The process to
obtain such certification is expensive and time consuming and has inherent
engineering risks. These include (but are not limited to) ground test risks such as
structural strength and fatigue resistance, and structural flutter modes. Flight test
risks include (but are not limited to) stability and handling over the desired center-of-
gravity range, performance extremes (stalls, balked-landing climb, single-engine
climb), and flutter control effectiveness (aircraft roll effectiveness, controllability,
various control failure safety). Delays in FAA certification might result in XTI
incurring increased costs in attempting to correct any issues causing such delays.
Also, the impact of new or changed laws or regulations on the TriFan 600’s
certification or the costs of complying with such laws and regulations cannot be
predicted. Since XTI will not be permitted to deliver commercially produced aircraft to
civilian customers until obtaining certification, no significant revenues will be
generated from such sales to fund operations prior to certification.

We depend on key personnel

XTI’s future success depends on the efforts of key personnel, including its senior
executive team. XTI does not currently carry any key man life insurance on its key
personnel or its senior executive team. However, XTI intends to obtain such insurance
at some point after closing this Offering. Regardless of such insurance, the loss of
services of any of these or other key personnel may have an adverse effect on XTI.
There can be no assurance that XTI will be successful in attracting and retaining the
personnel XTI requires to develop and market the proposed TriFan 600 aircraft and
conduct XTI’s proposed operations.

The company’s estimates of market demand may be inaccurate

XTI has projected the market for the TriFan 600 based upon a variety of internal and
external market data. The estimates involve significant assumptions, which may not
be realized in fact. There can be no assurance that XTI’s estimates for the number of
TriFan 600 aircraft that may be sold in the market will be as anticipated. In the event



that XTI has not accurately estimated the market size for and the number of TriFan
600 aircraft that may be sold, it could have a material adverse effect upon XTI, its
results from operations, and an investment in the shares.

The company will require intellectual property protection and may be subject to the
intellectual property claims of others

Although the company has applied for patents to protect its TriFan 600 technology,
the issuance of such patents is up to the US Patent and Trademark Office (USPTO).
The company has received one design patent (D741247) and one utility patent (US
9,676,479) for the TriFan 600. However, there is no guarantee that the company will
receive one or more of the additional patents for which it has applied. If one or more
of such patents are issued and if a third party challenges the validity of the XTI patents
or makes a claim of infringement against XTI, the federal courts would determine
whether XTI is entitled to patent protection. If XTI fails to successfully enforce its
proprietary technology or otherwise maintain the proprietary nature of its intellectual
property used in the TriFan 600 aircraft, its competitive position could suffer.
Notwithstanding XTI’s efforts to protect its intellectual property, its competitors may
independently develop similar or alternative technologies or products that are equal
to or superior to XTI's TriFan 600 technology without infringing on any of XTI’s
intellectual property rights or design around our proprietary technologies. There is no
guarantee that the USPTO will issue one or more additional patents to XTI or thatany
courtwill rule in XTI’s favor in the event of a dispute related to XTI’s intellectual
property. In the absence of further patent protection, it may be more difficult for XTI
to achieve commercial production of the TriFan 600.

You will need to keep records of your investment for tax purposes.

As with all investments in securities, if you sell our common stock at a profit or loss,
you will probably need to pay tax on the long- or short-term capital gains that you
realize, or apply the loss to other taxable income. If you do not have a regular
brokerage account, or your regular broker will not hold the common stock of XTI for
you (and many brokers do not hold Regulation A securities for their customers) there
will be nobody keeping records for you for tax purposes and you will have to keep your
own records, and calculate the gain or loss on any sales of the common stock.

Investors must consent to jurisdiction in Colorado and waive certain rights to a trial
by jury.

Section 6 of the subscription agreement for this Offering requires investors to consent
to the jurisdiction of any state or federal court of competent jurisdiction located
within the State of Colorado. As a result, investors located outside the State of
Colorado may have difficulty bringing a legal claim against us due to geographic
limitations. Additionally, investors are required to waive all right to trial by jury for
any claim arising out of or relating to the subscription agreement. The waiver of the
right to trial by jury and forum selection provisions does not extend to any claim
made under federal securities laws that do not arise out of or relate to the subscription
agreement.

There is no current market for the company’s shares.



There is no formal marketplace for the resale of XTI’s common stock. We do not have
plans to apply for or otherwise seek trading or quotation of the company’s shares on
an over-the-counter market. Investors should assume that they may not be able to

liquidate their investment for some time, or be able to pledge their shares as
collateral.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Stockholder Name[Number of Securities Owned [Type of Security OwnedIPercentage
David Brody 25,000,000 Common Stock 72.8

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Common Stock, Convertible Note (David Brody),
Convertible Note (Robert Denehy), Convertible Note (Saleem Zaheer), Convertible
Note (NMV Aero Technologies), and Convertible Note (Gruffat). As part of the
Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be offering up to 713,333 of
Common Stock.

Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 100,000,000 with a total of 34,313,718
outstanding.

Voting Rights

The holders of the common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record
on all matters submitted to a vote of the shareholders. Under our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws, our stockholders will not have
cumulative voting rights. Because of this, the holders of a majority of the shares of
common stock entitled to vote in any election of directors can elect all of the directors
standing for election, if they should so choose.

Material Rights

Dividends. Subject to preferences that may be applicable to any then-outstanding
preferred stock (in the event we create preferred stock), holders of common stock are
entitled to receive ratably those dividends, if any, as may be declared from time to
time by the board of directors out of legally available funds.

Liquidation Rights. In the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders
of common stock will be entitled to share ratably in the net assets legally available for
distribution to stockholders after the payment of all of our debts and other liabilities
and the satisfaction of any liquidation preference granted to the holders of any then-
outstanding shares of preferred stock that may be created in the future.

Other Rights. Holders of common stock have no preemptive, conversion or
subscription rights and there are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable
to the common stock. The rights, preferences and privileges of the holders of common



stock are subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of
shares of any series of preferred stock that we may create in the future.

The current amount of common stock outstanding does not include (i) 911,889
common stock warrants oustanding at a weighted average exercise price of $1.00 per
share, and (ii) 4,680,270 stock options outstanding at a weighted average exercise
price of $1.02 per share.

Convertible Note (David Brody)

The security will convert into Common stock and the terms of the Convertible Note
(David Brody) are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $763,176.00

Maturity Date: January 01, 0001

Interest Rate: 3.0%

Discount Rate: %

Valuation Cap: $35,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Company raising specified levels of investment from third parties

Material Rights

The convertible note matures upon the Company securing different levels of
investment from third parties as follows:

(1) $250,000 matures once the Company receives at least $5.0 million in total from
investors;

(2) $250,000 matures once the Company receives at least $10.0 million in total from
investors; and

(3) $263,176 matures once the Company receives at least $15.0 million in total from
investors.

Upon maturity, note holder has the right to receive repayment either in cash or in
shares of common stock.

Upon maturiy, interest shall accure on the unpaid principal and all accrued but unpaid
interest of the note at a rate of 10% per annum.

Convertible Note (Robert Denehy)

The security will convert into Common stock and the terms of the Convertible Note
(Robert Denehy) are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $715,000.00
Maturity Date: November 01, 2023
Interest Rate: 10.0%

Discount Rate: %

Valuation Cap: None



Conversion Trigger: Holder's discretion prior to maturity date
Material Rights

The holder of this note has the right to receive repayment of the note upon maturity
in either cash or in shares of common stock of the Company at a value of $1.00 per
share.

The conversion may occur at any time on or before November 1, 2023.
Convertible Note (Saleem Zaheer)

The security will convert into Common stock and the terms of the Convertible Note
(Saleem Zaheer) are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $30,000.00
Maturity Date: December 31, 2018
Interest Rate: 10.0%

Discount Rate: %

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Maturity date

Material Rights
The convertible note matures upon the earlier of:

(1) 60 days after the Company flies its first prototype of the TriFan 600; or
(2) December 31, 2018.

The holder of this note has the right to receive repayment of the note upon maturity
in either cash or in shares of common stock of the Company at a value of $1.00 per
share.

Convertible Note (NMV Aero Technologies)

The security will convert into Common stock and the terms of the Convertible Note
(NMV Aero Technologies) are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $550,000.00
Maturity Date: November 01, 2023
Interest Rate: 10.0%

Discount Rate: %

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Maturity date

Material Rights

The holder of this note has the right to receive repayment of the note upon maturity
in either cash or in shares of common stock of the Company at a value of $1.00 per
share.



On and after the maturity date interest shall accrue from and after such date on the
unpaid principal and all accrued but unpaid interest of the note at a rate of 12.0% per
annum.

Convertible Note (Gruffat)

The security will convert into Common stock and the terms of the Convertible Note
(Gruffat) are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $60,000.00
Maturity Date: November 01, 2023
Interest Rate: 10.0%

Discount Rate: %

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: At Holder's option

Material Rights

There are no material rights associated with Convertible Note (Gruffat).
What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Common Stock of the company, you will have limited rights in
regards to the corporate actions of the company, including additional issuances of
securities, company repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its significant
assets, or company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering
may have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on
the corporate actions of the company.

Dilution
Concurrent Reg A Offerring.

We have extended our Reg A offering and may close on additional funds which may
have effects of dilution. Please see our liquidity and captial resources section for more
details.

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock.

If the company decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value



dilution, with each share being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the
total percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings
dilution, with a reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs
only if the company offers dividends, and most early stage companies are unlikely to
offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For ayear, the securities can only be resold:
e [nanlIPO;
e To the company;
e To an accredited investor; and

e To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities
We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $1,257,315.00
Number of Securities Sold: 1,257,315
Use of proceeds: Engineering, fundraising, sales & marketing, and working
capital.
Date: September 23, 2016
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation A+

e Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $193,051.50
Number of Securities Sold: 128,701
Use of proceeds: Engineering, fundraising, sales & marketing, and working
capital.
Date: September 19, 2018
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation A+

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $715,000.00
Use of proceeds: Development Plan
Date: October 01, 2018
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)



e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $30,000.00
Use of proceeds: Development Plan
Date: October 30, 2017
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $550,000.00
Use of proceeds: Development Plan
Date: November 30, 2018
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $60,000.00
Use of proceeds: Development Plan
Date: January 31, 2019
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $461,900.00
Number of Securities Sold: 461,900
Use of proceeds: Development Plan
Date: May 23, 2019
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our cuirent expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may difter materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:

General Information



The company was incorporated in October 2009. No operations occurred until the
fourth quarter of 2012. Since then we have been engaged primarily in developing the
design and engineering concepts for the TriFan 600 and seeking funds from investors
to fund that development. We completed the conceptual engineering report for the
TriFan 600 in April 2014 and completed our business model in December 2014.

Operating Results

We have not yet generated any revenues and do not expect to do so until after
receiving FAA certification for the TriFan 600. Such certification may not come until
2023 or later.

In 2017 and 2018, we received $1,420,000 for a combination of deposits and
convertible notes that represent orders for 76 aircraft under our Aircraft Reservation
Deposit Agreement. These funds will not be recorded as revenue until the orders are
delivered, which may not be for many years or at all if we do not deliver aircraft to
those customers. The deposits serve to prioritize orders when the aircraft becomes
available for delivery. Customers making deposits are not obligated to purchase
aircraft until they execute a definitive purchase agreement. Customers may request
return of their deposit any time up until the execution of a purchase agreement.

Year Ended December 31, 2018 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2017.
Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2018 was approximately 20%
lower than operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2017. The principal
drivers of the decrease in spending came from a decreased spending on sales and
marketing and stock compensation expense included within general and
administrative expenses, offset by an increase in spending on conceptual design. For
instance, conceptual design costs to advance development of the TriFan 600 were
increased from $635,692 to $764,944 (an increase of approximately 20%). Sales and
marketing expense decreased from $327,546 to $42,334 (a decrease of approximately
87%). General and administrative costs were decreased from $2,197,250 to $1,713,100
(a decrease of approximately 22%). This decrease was the result of issuing fewer
options to members of the executive management team as compensation for services
in 2018 as compared to 2017. We continue to prioritize our conceptual design costs to
reach the next phase of development of the TriFan 600.

Interest expense for this time period increased from $58,247 to $1,237,028 as we
continued to rely on loan financing from related parties (discussed below). Included in
thisamount is a non-cash interest expense of $1,080,631 associated with a beneficial
conversion feature attached to a convertible note.

As a result, our net loss for the year ended December 31, 2018 was $3,798,753 as
compared to a net loss of $3,192,836 for the period ended December 31, 2017, an
increase of approximately 19%. Our accumulated deficit at December 31, 2018 was
$9,100,649.

Historical results and cash flows:



The company was incorporated in October 2009. No operations occurred until the
fourth quarter of 2012. Since then we have been engaged primarily in developing the
design and engineering concepts for the TriFan 600 and seeking funds from investors
to fund that development. We completed the conceptual engineering report for the
TriFan 600 in April 2014 and completed our business model in December 2014.

We have not yet generated any revenues and do not expect to do so until after
receiving FAA certification for the TriFan 600. Such certification may not come until
2023 or later.

Plan of Operations

The company has developed a detailed plan to complete its preliminary design phase,
hire key members of its management team, expand sales and marketing efforts and
complete detailed design and development work to support the completion of a 65%
scale and production of a full scale flying proof of concept aircraft. The 65% scale
prototype is currently being tested. The full scale aircraft is expected to take
approximately 2.0 years to produce and the company will require $25 million in total
funding during this period. Once the full scale proof of concept has been completed
and demonstrated, the company will seek FAA certification for the TriFan 600 and
begin preparations for production and manufacturing of the aircraft. The exact time
and cost to secure FAA certification and commence production is not known, but we
estimate that it will take 4 to 5 years and require at least $175 million in additional
funding after completion of the proof of concept.

Investors will note that the above plan is a significant change from our original plan.
Our original plan called for a 6 to 8 year timeline and a total cost of more than $400
million. The new plan requires half of the total funding and can be accomplished in a
shorter timeframe. The switch to a hybrid-electric propulsion system has yielded
significant savings in the engineering and development that will be required to build
and certify the aircraft. This change has also reduced the expected sale price of the
aircraft from approximately $12 million to only $6.5 million. The company will still be
able to achieve the same profit margins at this lower price. We believe this change in
expected sale price will expand the potential market for our aircraft. We believe the
combination of the lower total cost of development and the expanded market
potential increases the probability of successfully developing, funding and flying the
TriFan 600.

With the receipt of sufficient financing, we will continue to focus our resources on
four key areas: (i) hiring key members of the management team; (ii) pursuing
additional funding; (iii) continuing development of the aircraft; and (iv) expanding
sales and marketing to enable the company to take refundable customer deposits.
With the $1,438,590 received during 2018 from the sale of Common Stock under
Regulation A, Common Stock directly to investors and the issuance of convertible
notes combined with the issuance of options to management and key vendors, we
moved forward in each effort in 2018. We have received additional net proceeds of
$8,799 from the sale of Common Stock under Regulation A between January 1, 2019



and August 15, 2019.

We will continue our design and development efforts by engaging key supply partners
to assist in the creation of both the 65% scale and full scale proof of concept aircraft.
These aircraft will help to identify and solve potential challenges in certain critical
path systems of the aircraft including the engines, batteries, transmission and fly-by-
wire system. Key milestones for this process will include:

« Complete and fly the 65% scale proof of concept aircraft

« Initiate dialogue with vendors of key components of the full scale proof of concept
aircraft

« Commission and complete trade studies
« Complete preliminary design of critical path systems
« Complete and fly the aircraft

We will continue to develop an internal and external sales and marketing capability to
increase awareness of the aircraft and position the company to continue taking
refundable customer deposits and pre-sales orders. This will be accomplished with the
following milestones:

« Continue existing sales and marketing efforts

« Build and fly a subscale airplane

« Attend and exhibit at major international trade shows

» Receive additional refundable, escrowed deposit orders for the TriFan 600

We believe that increasing awareness of the aircraft and demonstrating customer
demand through orders will enable the company to raise additional capital in the
future more easily. To date, the company has received orders and deposits for 81
aircraft representing the potential for roughly $525 million of future revenue.
However, this revenue may not be earned for many years, or at all if customers cancel
their deposits or we do not deliver aircraft to those customers.

The milestones identified above assume that we are able to raise the full $22.5 million
from this Offering. In that event, the company would expect to accomplish all of the
above milestones within the first 24 months. However, we have developed our
spending plans in each of these areas to be scalable to the amount of money that we
raise in this Offering. As a result, we do not anticipate needing to raise additional
funds in the six months after the completion of this Offering. We will need additional
capital to complete our development of the proof of concept and beyond as discussed
above and are pursuing multiple options for such funding, rather than relying on one
source. We believe funding will come from a combination of short-term and long-term
sources, including potential industry partners and suppliers.



Despite funding levels below our target, the company was able to accomplish several
significant milestones in 2018, including

« Completed fabrication of our 65% scale proof of concept aircraft and progressed
that process to be ready to conduct test flights in the second quarter of 2019

« Attended multiple tradeshows both domestically and internationally to secure
additional orders for the aircraft

« Secured additional orders for 18 aircraft representing an additional ~$114 million in
potential future revenue above and beyond the 58 aircraft reservations representing
$380 million in potential future revenue in 2017.

« Continued dialogue with multiple industry participants and potential vendors for
key components

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of June 30, 2019, we had cash of $123,759 and a working capital deficit of
$(2,448,706). Additional current assets include $56,758 held in escrow from the sale of
securities under the ongoing Regulation A Offering.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

The funds of this campaign are critical to our operations.

We have funded our operations primarily through the sale of common stock to
investors under Regulation A.

We also have a revolving line of credit of up to $250,000 entered into between the
company and our founder, Mr. Brody as of January 1, 2016. Borrowings under the
credit revolver accrue interest at a rate of 3.0% per annum. As of June 30, 2019, the
balance on the credit is $143,175. The maturity on the credit is January 1, 2020.

We also repaid $30,000 in convertible notes and issued $60,000 in new convertible
notes.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

Currently, the company requires additional capital to continue operations. If we do



not receive funding from private investors or our Regulation A Offering, we anticipate
that the company will run out of funding in the first half of 2020 based on our current
cash balance and burn rate.

As of June 30, 2019, the Company has cash and escrow receivables totaling $180,517,
current liabilities totaling $2,629,222, and losses from inception totaling $11,997,508,
raising substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

If we only raise the minimum amount of $9,999 we will be able to operate the
company for less than one month without additional funding. The vast majority of
these funds would go towards research and development.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

If we raise the maxiumum amount of $1,069,999 we will be able to operate the
company for approximately one year before requiring addtional funding. The vast
majority of these funds would go towards research and development. We have the
abiliity to increase or decrease the rate of spending on our R&D plan as funding
requires.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

The Company filed an amended Form 1-A with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) in order to extend its offering of common stock of up to $22.5
million. This offering was qualified by the SEC on September 16, 2019. This offereing
will be terminated once the Reg CF offering is available.

Indebtedness

e Creditor: Jeff Pino's Estate
Amount Owed: $67,268.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%
Maturity Date: January 01, 0001
The debt was originally a convertible note of $93,268. After the noteholder
passed away, his estate has agreed to accept repayment without interests in
change for extinguishing the notes. As of June 30, 2019, the outstanding balance
is $67,268.



e Creditor: David Brody
Amount Owed: $763,176.00
Interest Rate: 3.0%
Maturity Date: January 01, 0001
The convertible note has different maturity dates contingent upon the company
securing different levels of investment from third parties. Mr. Brody has the right
to receive repayment of the note upon maturity in either cash or in shares of
common stock of the company.

e Creditor: David Brody
Amount Owed: $143,175.00
Interest Rate: 3.0%
Maturity Date: January 01, 2020
The revolving line of credit allows the company to borrow up to $250,000. As of
June 30, 2019, the outstanding balance is $143,175.

e Creditor: Robert Denehy
Amount Owed: $715,000.00
Interest Rate: 10.0%
Maturity Date: November 01, 2023
Convertible Note.

e Creditor: Saleem Zaheer
Amount Owed: $30,000.00
Interest Rate: 10.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2018
Convertible Note. After the maturity date, interest shall accrue from and after
such date on the unpaid principal and all accrued but unpaid interest of the note
at a rate of 12.0% per annum.

e Creditor: NMV Aero Technologies
Amount Owed: $550,000.00
Interest Rate: 10.0%

Maturity Date: November 01, 2023
Convertible Note

e Creditor: Gruffat
Amount Owed: $60,000.00
Interest Rate: 10.0%
Maturity Date: November 01, 2023
Convertible Note

Related Party Transactions



e Name of Entity: Robert LaBelle
Relationship to Company: Chief Executive Officer and Director
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Consulting agreement for the
services of Robert LaBelle.
Material Terms: The compensation terms provide for payments of $25,000 per
month from February 1, 2017 through December 31, 2018, which is to be
supplemented by bonus payments in the following amounts: « $150,000 and
additional stock options equal to 1% of the then outstanding shares of the
company upon raising $3,000,000 by August 31, 2018; « $150,000 and additional
stock options equal to 1% of the then outstanding shares of the company upon
raising $3,000,000 above the previously-raised $3,000,000 by December 31,
2018; » $250,000 and additional stock options equal to 1% of the then
outstanding shares of the company upon raising $9,000,000 above the
previously-raised $6,000,000 by February 28, 2019; « $350,000 and additional
stock options equal to 2% of the then outstanding shares of the company upon
raising $15,000,000 above the previously-raised $15,000,000 by February 28,
2020;

e Name of Entity: Andrew Woglom
Relationship to Company: Officer
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Andrew's consulting firm
provides CFO services to the company.
Material Terms: Consultant and Company will establish in writing whether
Consultant will receive compensation on the project based on an hourly rate, a
fixed fee, a contingency, or a blended fee arrangement, as generally described
below. If no prior agreement is established in writing, Consultant will be
compensated based on an hourly rate of $200.00, provided he produces adequate
documentation. Hourly Fees. Hourly Rate. Under an hourly rate arrangement,
Company will pay Consultant by the hour for the work conducted by Consultant
as necessary to complete the Project. Fixed Fee. Under a fixed-fee arrangement,
Company will pay an agreed-upon sum of money for an agreed upon scope of
work. Contingency Fee. Under a contingency fee arrangement, Consultant will be
paid a pre-determined fee only if it achieves successful completion of an agreed
upon project or other agreed upon result for Company. Blended Fees. A blended
fee arrangement can be used by combining any of the above compensation
methods to form an agreed-upon payment method that better suits the
circumstances of a Project than using any one other fee arrangement alone.
Consultant shall invoice Company monthly and each invoice shall indicate the
type of fee agreed upon for the work being invoiced therein. All payments are due
thirty (30) days from receipt of an accurate invoice, unless otherwise agreed by
Company and Consultant.

e Name of Entity: Robert Denehy
Relationship to Company: Director
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $715,000 Convertible Note
Material Terms: 10% interest per annum, maturity date on Nov. 1, 2023, and the



right to receive repayment of the note upon maturity in either cash or in shares
of common stock of the Company at a value of $1.00 per share.

e Name of Entity: David Brody
Relationship to Company: Director, Chairman, Founder, 20%+ Owner
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $763,176 Convertible Note.
Material Terms: Convertible Note with different maturity dates contingent upon
the company securing different levels of investment from third parties. Mr.
Brody has the right to receive repayment of the note upon maturity in either
cash or in shares of common stock of the company.

e Name of Entity: Saleem Zeheer
Relationship to Company: Consultant and shareholder
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $30,000 Convertible Note
Material Terms: 10% interest per annum. Maturity date December 31, 2019.

e Name of Entity: David Brody
Relationship to Company: Director, Chairman, Founder, 20%+ Owne
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $250,000 revolving line of credit.
Material Terms: Under terms of the agreement, balances drawn on the revolving
line-of-credit bear interest of 3% annually. The revolving line-of-credit has a
maturity date of January 1, 2020.

e Name of Entity: David Brody
Relationship to Company: Director, Chairman, Founder, 20%+ Owner
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Consulting agreement
Material Terms: If and when the company receives $20 million or more in
investments from third parties (excluding further investment from Mr. Brody),
he will receive compensation totaling $240,000 in recognition of his services as
Chairman, President and Secretary performed between January 1, 2014 and
December 31, 2015.

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $51,470,577.00
Valuation Details:

We have prepared an internal financial model and set of projections based on our
understanding of the market, expected customer demand, and the profit margins we
believe we can generate. Based on these projections, we applied a terminal valuation
multiple of 10x EBITDA which is comparable to other aircraft manufacturers. At a
valuation of $1.50 / share (or a pre-money valuation of $51.4mm), we believe our
projections and terminal valuation will generate returns for investors that are in line
with what early stage investors would expect for a company like XTI. The Company
set its valuation without a formal-third party independent valuation.



Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $9,999.00 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
7.0%

e Working Capital
3.0%
To pay general expenses of the corporation.

e Research & Development
90.0%
To pay for engineering expenses associated with our proof of concept aircraft.

If we raise the over allotment amount of $1,069,999.50, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

StartEngine Platform Fees
7.0%

® Marketing
12.0%
Proceeds will be used to further develop relationships with airplane brokers and
to continue marketing of the TriFan 600 and its capabilities.

e Working Capital
9.0%
Proceeds will be used to pay for general expenses of the corporation.

e Research & Development
72.0%
Proceeds will fund our engineering and development plan.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation



Crowdfunding.
Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than April 29 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
http://www.xtiaircraft.com/home/ (On the Company webpage, www xtiaircraft.com, in
the "About” section, under the drop down titled "Annual Report”).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.conmyxti-
aircraft

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.



EXHIBIT BTO FORM C

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW FOR XTI Aircraft
Company

[See attached]
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artesian
CPA, LLC

To the Board of Directors of
XTT Aircraft Company
Englewood, Colorado

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of X'TT Aircraft Company (the “Company”)
(a Delaware corporation), which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31,2018, and the related
statements of operamons, changes in stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparason and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of .\merica; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal conwol relevant to the preparation
and fair presentamon of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with audimng standards generally accepted in the United States
of Amenca. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from matenal misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparason and fair presentamon of the financil statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effecwveness of the entity’s internal control. .\ccordingly, we express no such
opinion. .An audit also includes evaluaung the appropriateness of accounung policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting eswmates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Artesian CPA, LLC

1624 Market Street, Suite 202 | Denver, CO 80202
p: 877968.3330 f 720.634.0905
m fol@ ArtesianCPA.com | www. ArtesianCPA.com




Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of XTI Aircraft Company as of December 31, 2018, and the results of its operasons and its cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounung principles generally accepted in the United
States of .\menca.

Emphasis of a Matter

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
going concern. .\s descnibed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company has not generated revenues
or profits since inception, has negative cash flows from operations, has sustained a net loss of $3,798,753
for the year ended December 31, 2018, has an accumulated deficit of 9,100,649 as of December 31, 2018,
and has limited liquid assets with $556,847 of cash while having $2,437,764 of current assets as of December
31, 2018. These factors, among others, raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to contsnue as a
going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also descnbed in Note 1. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our
opinion 1s not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matter

The accompanying financial statements of XTT \ircraft Company as of December 31, 2017 and for the year
then ended were audited by a predecessor auditor. The predecessor auditor issued an unqualified opinion
dated \pril 27, 2018 on the financial statements as of December 31, 2017 and for the year then ended. The
predecessor auditor included an emphasis of a matter paragraph in its opinion related to the existence of
substantial doubt as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

/s/ Artesian CPA, LLC

Denver, Colorado
May 6, 2019

Artesian CPA, LLC

1624 Market Street, Suite 202 | Denver, CO 80202
p: 877.968.3330 f 720.634.0905
mfo(@ArtestanCP A .com | www. ArtestanCPA.com



XTI AIRCRAFT COMPANY

Balance Sheets
December 31,
2018 2017
Assets
Current assets:
Cash $ 556,847 § 436,973
Escrow receivable 86.885 65.503
Total current assets 643,732 502.476
Non-current assets:
Patent, net 197,720 91,940
Trademarks 7.518 7.518
Total non-current assets 205.238 99.458
Total assets $ 848970 $ 601934
Liabilities and Stockholders” Deficit
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 432262 $ 139,684
Accounts payable - related party 448,909 527,809
Accrued interest 120,502 77944
Customer deposits 175,000 75,000
Convertible notes - related party, current portion 890,444 1,281,866
Revolving line-of-credit - related party 143,175 180,063
Warrant liability 227472 150.804
Total current liabilitics 2,437,764 2,433,170
Long-term liabilities:
Convertible notes - related party, net of current portion, net of
unamortized discount of $348.515 and $0 as of December 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively 916.485 -
Total liabilities 3,354,249 2,433,170
Commitments and contingencics
Stockholders’ deficit:
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized
at December 31, 2018 and 2017, 38,476,770 and 37,455,017
shares issued and outstanding, respectively 38.477 37.445
Additional paid-in capital 6.556,893 3,433,215
Accumulated deficit (9.100.649) (5.301.896)
Total stockholders’ deficit (2.505.279) (1.831.236)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit 3 848970 §__ 601,934

See Independent Auditor’s Report and notes to financial statements.
e



XTI AIRCRAFT COMPANY
Statements of Operations

Operating expenses:
Conceptual design
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Other expense:
Change in value of warrant
Interest Expense
Interest Expense — beneficial conversion feature
Interest expense — discount accretion
Total other expense

Net loss

Weighted average common shares outstanding during the year

Net loss per common share — basic and diluted

For the Years Ended
December 31,
2018 2017
$ 764944 § 635,692
42,334 327,546
1,713,100 2,197,250
2.520.378 3.160.488
(2,520,378) (3,160,488)
(41,347) 25,899
(93.801) (40,102)
(1,080,631) -
(62,596) (18.145)
(1,278,375) (32,348)
$_(3.798753) $_(3.192.836)
38.092.290 37.445.017
$ 0.10) $ (0.09)

See Independent Auditor’s Report and notes to financial statements.
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XTI AIRCRAFT COMPANY
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit
For the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Common Stock Additional Accumulated Sloc':g‘:l:jers‘
Shares Amount Paid- In Capital Deficit Deficit

Balance at December 31, 2016 36428839  $36.429 $678,270  ($2,109,060)  ($1.394361)
Issuance of shares through Reg A offering 378,178 378 377.800 - 378,178
Issuance of shares for compensation 513,000 513 512,487 - 513,000
Issuance of common stock 125,000 125 124,875 - 125,000
Stock-based compensation - options - - 1,678,301 - 1,678,301
Warrants issued with convertible debt - - 126,723 - 126,723
Offering costs - - (65,241) - (65,241)
Net loss - - - (3.192,836) (3,192.836)
Balance at December 31, 2017 37445017  $37.445 $3.433,215 ($5.301,896) ($1,831,236)
Issuance of shares through Reg A offering ($1.00) 319.863 320 319,543 - 319.863
Issuance of shares through Reg A offering ($1.50) 66,655 67 99916 - 99,983
Issuance of shares for compensation 313,335 313 359,690 - 360,003
Issuance of common stock 331,900 332 320342 - 320,674
Stock-based compensation - options - - 558,505 - 558505
Stock-based compensation - warrants - - 198,720 - 198,720
Warrants issued with share issuance - - 11,226 - 11,226
Warrants issued with convertible debt - - 302,533 - 302,533
Bereficial conversion feature on convertible debt - - 1,080,631 - 1,080,631
Offering costs - - (127,428) - (127,428)
Net loss - - - (3,798,753)  (3,798,753)
Balance at December 31, 2018 38,476,770  $38.477 $6.556.893  ($9.100.649) ($2505279)

See Independent Auditor’s Report and notes to financial statements.

oss



XTI AIRCRAFT COMPANY
Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating
activities:
Amortization of intangible asscts
Accretion of debt discount to interest expense
Change in fair value of warrant liability
Stock issuance for compensation
Stock compensation expense
Warrant compensation expense
Amortization of convertible note beneficial conversion feature
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Deposits
Prepaids
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - related party
Customer deposits
Accrued interest
Net cash used in operating activitics

Cash flows from investing activities
Patent issuance costs
Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from convertible notes
Proceeds from Reg A offering, net
Proceeds held in escrow
Borrowings on revolving line-of-credit
Payments on revolving line-of-credit
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Net cash provided by financing activitics

Net increase in cash

Cash - beginning of period
Cash - end of period

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Financing Activities:
Warrants issued as broker compensation
Conversion of accrued interest to convertible note payable
Warrants issued with common stock
Warrants issued with convertible notes

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2018

2017

$ (3,798.,753)

$ (3,192,836)

14.635 4,805
62.596 18.145
41,347 (25.899)
360,003 513,000
558.505 1,678,301
198.720 5
1,080,631 ;
’ 67.560
e 18.293
292,579 68.472
(78.900) 47,028
100,000 75.000
92,558 40,101
(1.076.079) (688.030)
(120416) (20,000)
(120416) (20,000)
715,000 530,000
327.739 353.196
(21,382) (6.229)
- 101,533
(36.888) (25.823)
331.900 125.000
1,316,369 1.077.677
119.874 369.647
436.973 67.326
$ 556847 § 436973
$ 35322 $ 176703
$ 50000 $ ’
$ 11226 $ -
$ 302533 $ 126723

No cash for interest or income taxes was paid during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

See Independent Auditor’s Report and notes to financial statements.
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XTIAIRCRAFT COMPANY
Notes to Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for the years then ended

Note 1 - Description of Business and Significant Accounting Policies

XTI Aircraft Company (the “Company,” “XTL” or “we”) is a privately owned aviation business
incorporated in Delaware in 2009 to develop vertical takeoff airplanes. XTI is an carly-stage aircraft
manufacturer that is creating a revolutionary solution for the business aviation industry. Once developed,
this vertical takeoff airplane, the TriFan, will offer point-to-point travel to reduce total travel time by
decreasing time spent driving to and from an airport before enjoying the benefits of a private jet.

Since inception, the Company has been engaged primarily in developing the design and engineering
concepts for the TriFan and secking funds from investors to fund that development.

Going Concern and Management's Plans

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going-concern basis, which
contemplates the realization of assets and liquidation of liabilitics in the ordinary course of business. As
of December 31, 2018, the Company has cash totaling $556,847, current liabilities totaling $2.437.764,
and inception-to-date losses totaling $9,100,649, raising substantial doubt about the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

In order for the Company to continue as a going concern, management’s plan is to expand its financing
plans to include potential additional closings under Regulations A offerings. Nonetheless, to date the
Company has not accomplished a financing of the size needed to put the Company on a stable operating
basis. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to secure additional debt or equity
financing, will be able to obtain positive cash flow operations, or that, if the Company is successful in
any of those actions, those actions will produce adequate cash flow to enable the Company to meet future
obligations. If the Company is unable to obtain additional debt or equity financing, operations may need
to be reduced or ceased. The inability or failure to secure adequate debt or equity financing could
adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Cash

The Company holds cash in checking accounts. The Company continually monitors its positions with,
and the credit quality of, the financial institutions with which it holds cash. The Company had $300,703
and $0 of cash in excess of FDIC insured balances as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Intangible Assets

Intangible asscts are recorded at historical cost. These assets are related to legal costs incurred in
pursuing patents and trademarks to protect the Company’s intellectual property. If the Company
determines it will abandon these efforts, or if the United States Patent and Trademark Office indicates
the patents or trademarks will not be accepted, all capitalized cost would be expensed immediately. The
Company amortizes patents over a 15-year life once awarded. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, costs
totaling $227,046 and $106,630 associated with patents and trademarks had been recorded, respectively.
Amortization expense of $14,635 and $4,805 has been recorded for the years ended December 31, 2018
and 2017, respectively.



XTI AIRCRAFT COMPANY
Notes to Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for the years then ended

Conceptual Design Costs

Conceptual design costs, also referred to as rescarch and development costs, of the Company are
expensed as incurred. These costs relate to the design and creation of the TriFan. For the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company incurred conceptual design cost expenses of $764,944 and
$635,692, respectively.

Advertising and Promotion

The cost of advertising and promotion is expensed as incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2018
and 2017, the Company incurred advertising and promotion expenses of $42334 and $327,546,
respectively. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had no accrued advertising expense
recorded as liabilities in the accompanying balance sheets.

Income Taxes

The Company converted from an S corporation for tax purposes to a C corporation effective September
26,2016. The Company follows guidance for income taxes and uncertain tax positions. Deferred income
taxes are provided for the differences between the bases of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
and income tax purposes. Tax positions meeting the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold are
measured in accordance with accounting guidance. A valuation allowance is established when necessary
to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.

Interest and penalties associated with tax positions are recorded in the period assessed as general and
administrative expenses. However, no interest or penalties have been assessed as of December 31, 2018.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent asscts and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets principally include intangible assets. The Company evaluates long-lived assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the asset
may not be recoverable.

An impairment is measured by comparing expected future cash flows (undiscounted and before interest)
to the carrying value of the assets. If impairment exists, the amount of impairment is measured as the
difference between the net book value of the assets and their estimated fair value. The Company belicves
that no impairment of any long-lived assets existed at December 31, 2018 and 2017.



XTIAIRCRAFT COMPANY
Notes to Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for the years then ended

Convertible Instruments

U.S. GAAP requires companies to bifurcate conversion options from their host instruments and account
for them as free standing derivative financial instruments according to certain criteria. The criteria
include circumstances in which (a) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative
instrument are not clearly and closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host
contract, (b) the hybrid instrument that embodies both the embedded derivative instrument and the host
contract is not re-measured at fair value under otherwise applicable generally accepted accounting
principles with changes in fair value reported in earnings as they occur and (c) a separate instrument
with the same terms as the embedded derivative instrument would be considered a derivative instrument.
An exception to this rule is when the host instrument is deemed to be conventional as that term is
described under applicable U.S. GAAP.

When the Company has determined that the embedded conversion options should not be bifurcated from
their host instruments, the Company records, when necessary, discounts to convertible notes for the
intrinsic value of conversion options embedded in debt instruments based upon the differences between
the fair value of the underlying common stock at the commitment date of the note transaction and the
effective conversion price embedded in the note. Debt discounts under these arrangements arc amortized
over the term of the related debt to their stated date of redemption.

Convertible Warrant Liabilitics and Common Stock Warrants

Freestanding warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock are classified as liabilities on
the balance sheets at their estimated fair value when the warrant holder has the option to elect to receive
cash value for the warrants and, therefore, may obligate the Company to transfer asscts at some point in
the future. Such common stock warrants are recorded at fair value upon issuance and are subject to
remeasurement to their respective estimated fair values. At the end of each reporting period, changes in
the estimated fair value of such common stock warrants are recorded in the statements of operations.
The Company will continue to adjust the liability associated with the liability classified common stock
warrants for changes in the estimated fair value until the carlier of the exercise or expiration of the
common stock warrants.

The Company issued common stock warrants in connection with the execution of certain debt financings
during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 and in exchange for professional services rendered
to the Company. Common stock warrants that are not considered derivative liabilitics are accounted for
at fair value at the date of issuance in additional paid-in capital. The fair value of these common stock
warrants is determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC 718, Compensation -
Stock Compensation. Under the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718, stock-based
compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized
as expense ratably over the requisite service period, which is generally the option vesting period. The
Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options.



XTIAIRCRAFT COMPANY
Notes to Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for the years then ended

The Company measures compensation expense for its non-employee stock-based compensation under
ASC 505, Equity. The fair value of the option issued or committed to be issued is used to measure the
transaction, as this is more reliable than the fair value of the services received. The fair value is measured
at the value of the Company’s common stock or stock award on the date that the commitment for
performance by the counterparty has been reached or the counterparty’s performance is complete. The
fair value of the equity instrument is charged directly to stock-based compensation expense and credited
to additional paid-in capital.

The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of stock-based awards represent management’s best
estimates and involve inherent uncertaintics and the application of management’s judgment. As aresult,
if factors change and management uses different assumptions, stock-based compensation expense could
be materially different for future awards.

The expected life of stock options was estimated using the “simplified method,” as the Company has
limited historical information to develop reasonable expectations about future exercise patterns and
employment duration for its stock options grants. The simplified method is based on the average of the
vesting tranches and the contractual life of each grant. For stock price volatility, the Company uses
comparable public companies as a basis for its expected volatility to calculate the fair value of options
grants. The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury notes with a term approximating the expected
life of the option. The estimation of the number of stock awards that will ultimately vest requires
judgment, and to the extent actual results or updated estimates differ from the Company’s current
estimates, such amounts are recognized as an adjustment in the period in which estimates are revised.

Beneficial Conversion Feature

From time to time, the Company may issuc convertible notes that may have conversion prices that create
an embedded beneficial conversion feature pursuant to FASB ASC Subtopic 470-20, Debt with
Conversion and Other Options. A beneficial conversion feature (“BCF”) exists on the date a convertible
note is issued when the fair value of the underlying common stock to which the note is convertible is in
excess of the conversion price. In accordance with this guidance, the intrinsic value of the BCF is
recorded as a debt discount with a corresponding amount to additional paid-in capital. The debt discount
is amortized to interest expense over the life of the note using the effective interest method.

Net Loss per Share

Net carnings or loss per share is computed by dividing net income or loss by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding during the period, excluding shares subject to redemption or
forfeiture. The Company presents basic and diluted net earnings or loss per share. Diluted net eamings
or loss per share reflect the actual weighted average of common shares issued and outstanding during
the period, adjusted for potentially dilutive securities outstanding. Potentially dilutive securities are
excluded from the computation of the diluted net loss per share if their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.
As the Company is in a net loss position as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, all dilutive items are anti-
dilutive and therefore basic net loss per share equals diluted net loss per share. Potentially dilutive items
outstanding as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 include stock options (Note 4), warrants (Note 5), and
convertible notes (Note 3).
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Notes to Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for the years then ended

Customer Deposits

The Company periodically enters into aircraft reservation agreements that include a deposit placed by a
potential customer. The deposits serve to prioritize orders when the aircraft becomes available for
delivery. Customers making deposits are not obligated to purchase aircraft until they execute a definitive
purchase agreement. Customers may request return of their deposit any time up until the execution of a
purchase agreement. The Company records such advance deposits as a liability and defers the related
revenue recognition until delivery of an aircraft occurs, if any.

Reclassifications of Prior Year Balances

Certain balances were reclassified from prior year presentation to conform to current year presentation.
These changes did not have a material impact to these financial statements.

Note 2 — Revolving Line-of-Credit — Related Party

On January 1, 2016, the Company entered into a revolving line-of-credit with a stockholder of the
Company, which allowed the Company to borrow up to $250,000. Under terms of the agreement,
balances drawn on the revolving line-of-credit bear interest of 3% annually. The revolving line-of-credit
has a maturity date of January 1, 2020 and through the date the financials were available to be issued has
not been repaid by the Company. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the balance on the revolving line-
of-credit was $143,175 and $180,063, respectively. Interest expense on this line of credit for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $4,029 and $3.450, respectively. As of December 31, 2018
and 2017, accrued interest payable on the line of credit was $11,167 and $7,138, respectively.

Note 3 — Convertible Notes — Related Party

In August 2015, the Company entered into a convertible note agreement with a stockholder. The
convertible note has a principal amount of $763,176 and accrues interest at a rate of 3% per annum,
provided that on and after the maturity dates (noted below) interest shall accrue from and after such date
on the unpaid principal and all accrued but unpaid interest of the note at a rate of 10% per annum. The
convertible note matures upon the Company securing different levels of investment from third partics as
follows:

e $250,000 matures once the Company receives at least $5.0 million in total from investors;
$250,000 matures once the Company receives at least $10.0 million in total from investors; and
$263,176 matures once the Company receives at least $15.0 million in total from investors.

The stockholder has the right to receive repayment of the note upon maturity in either cash or in shares
of common stock of the Company. The terms of the conversion state that the shares to be issued to the
stockholder upon a conversion shall be equal to the value of sharcs based on a $35 million pre-money
valuation of the Company. The conversion may occur at any time on or before the third maturity date
noted above. The stockholder, at his option, may cause all or any portion of the unpaid principal and any
accrued but unpaid interest to be converted into common stock of the Company. As of December 31,
2018 and 2017, the outstanding balance was $763,176. Interest expense on this obligation for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $22,895 and $22.895, respectively. As of December 31, 2018
and 2017, accrued interest payable on this obligation was $77,644 and $55,330, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for the years then ended

During 2015, the Company entered into a convertible note with a consultant and Board member of the
Company. The note has a principal amount of $97,268 and bears interest at a rate of 3.0% per annum.
The holder of this note may demand repayment of the note at any time and has the option to receive
repayment of the note in either cash or in shares of common stock of the Company based on the fair
market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of the conversion. As of December 31, 2018
and 2017, the outstanding balance was $97,268. Interest expense on this obligation for the years ended
December 31,2018 and 2017 was $2,918 and $2,918, respectively. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
accrued interest payable on this obligation was $8,754 and $5,836, respectively.

During 2017, the Company entered into a convertible note with a consultant and Board member of the
Company. The note has a principal amount of $500,000 and accrues interest at a rate of 10.0% per
annum, provided that on and after the maturity date of November 2023 interest shall accrue from and
after such date on the unpaid principal and all accrued but unpaid interest of the note at a rate of 12.0%
per annum. In October 2018, the principal and accrued interest on this note (totaling $550,000) plus an
additional $165,000 of new cash were combined into a new convertible note with a principal balance of
$715,000. The original convertible note was cancelled as part of this new note. The remaining note
bears interest at a rate of 10.0% per annum. Interest expense on this obligation for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $51,792 and $8.470, respectively. As of December 31, 2018 and
2017, accrued interest payable on this obligation was $10,262 and $8.470, respectively. This convertible
note is presented on the balance sheet net of unamortized discounts of $139,522 related to warrants
issued in conjunction with this convertible note (see Note 5), for a net carrying balance of $575.478 as
of December 31, 2018.

The holder of this note has the right to receive repayment of the note upon maturity in either cash or in
shares of common stock of the Company at a value of $1.00 per share. The conversion may occur at any
time on or before November 1, 2023. On the date of issuance, the Company was actively selling shares
of its common stock at $1.50 pershare. Thus, the Company determined there was a beneficial conversion
feature on the date of the issuance. The Company recorded a discount of $579,851 related to the
beneficial conversion feature. This amount was fully amortized to interest expense during 2018 because
the note is immediately convertible into common stock.

During 2017, the Company entered into a convertible note with a consultant and stockholder of the
Company. The note has a principal amount of $30,000 and accrues interest at a rate of 10.0% per annum,
provided that on and after the maturity dates (noted below) interest shall accrue from and after such date
on the unpaid principal and all accrued but unpaid interest of the note at a rate of 12.0% per annum. The
principal balance outstanding on this obligation was $30,000 as of both December 31, 2018 and 2017.
Interest expense on this obligation for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $3,000 and
$508, respectively. As of December 31,2018 and 2017, accrued interest payable on this obligation was
$3,508 and $508, respectively.

The holder of this note has the right to receive repayment of the note upon maturity in cither cash or in

shares of common stock of the Company at a value of $1.00 per share. The conversion may occur at any
time on or before the maturity date noted below.
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Notes to Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for the years then ended

The convertible note matures upon the carlier of:

e 60 days after the Company flies its first prototype of the TriFan 600; or
e December 31, 2018

During 2018, the Company entered into a convertible note with a consultant of the Company. The note
has a principal amount of $550,000 and accrues interest at a rate of 10.0% per annum, provided that on
and after the maturity date (noted below) interest shall accrue from and after such date on the unpaid
principal and all accrued but unpaid interest of the note at a rate of 12.0% per annum. The principal
balance outstanding as of December 31, 2018 was $550.000. Interest expense on this obligation for the
year ended December 31, 2018 was $9,167. As of December 31, 2018, accrued interest payable on this
obligation was $9.167. This convertible note is presented on the balance sheet net of unamortized
discounts of $208,993 related to warrants issued in conjunction with this convertible note (see Note 5),
for a net carrying balance of $341,007 as of December 31, 2018.

The holder of this note has the right to receive repayment of the note upon maturity in cither cash or in
shares of common stock of the Company at a value of $1.00 per share. The conversion may occur at any
time on or before November 1, 2023. On the date of issuance, the Company was actively selling shares
of its common stock at $1.50 per share. Thus, the Company determined there was a beneficial conversion
feature on the date of the issuance. The Company recorded a discount of $500,780 related to the
beneficial conversion feature. This amount was fully amortized to interest expense during 2018 because
the note is immediately convertible into common stock.

e 60 days after the Company flies its first prototype of the TriFan 600; or
® November 1, 2023

Note 4 — Stockholders’ Deficit

The Company has authorized 100,000,000 shares of $0.001 par value common stock.

In 2017, in conjunction with the initial close under its Reg A filing the Company issued 138,667 warrants
to a service provider to purchase common stock with an exercise price of $1.00 per warrant. The
warrants are exercisable for a period of 10 years. The Company considered accounting guidance and
determined that the warrants are liability classified. The fair value of the warrants was determined to be
$136.444, with the remaining $328.482 net proceeds from the Reg A filing allocated to equity. The
warrant liability will be re-measured at fair value each reporting period. The settlement of the warrant
liability will occur once all the warrants have either been exercised or expire and will not require the
Company to pay cash. See Note 7 for discussion of fair value.

During 2017, the Company completed closings under its Reg A Filing and sold 378,178 shares of
common stock at a value of $1.00 per share for gross proceeds of $378,178 to 452 different individual
investors. As of December 31, 2017, proceeds of $65,503 were held in escrow and recorded as an asset
on the balance sheet. Offering costs totaling $25,482 have been netted against the gross proceeds
received during 2017.

The Company issued 50,500 additional warrants to the same service provider during 2017. The Company
considered accounting guidance and determined that the warrants are liability classified. The fair value
-13 -
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of the warrants was determined to be $40,259, with the remaining $312,937 net proceeds from the Reg
A filing allocated to equity. The warrant liability will be re-measured at fair value each reporting period.
The settlement of the warrant liability will occur once all the warrants have either been exercised or
expire and will not require the Company to pay cash. Sec Note 7 for discussion of fair value.

During 2018, the Company completed additional closings under its Reg A Filing and sold 319,863 shares
of common stock at a value of $1.00 per share for gross proceeds of $319,863 to 180 different individual
investors. As of December 31, 2018, proceeds of $7,650 were held in escrow and recorded as an asset
on the balance sheet. This offering was closed in July 2018.

The Company issued 27,500 additional warrants to the same service provider during 2018 with an
exercise price of $1.00 per share. The warrants are exercisable upon the date of grant through the
contractual term of 10 years. The Company considered accounting guidance and determined that the
warrants are liability classified. The fair value of the warrants was determined to be $30,960, with the
remaining net proceeds from the Reg A filing allocated to equity. The warrant liability will be re-
measured at fair value each reporting period. The settlement of the warrant liability will occur once all
the warrants have cither been exercised or expire and will not require the Company to pay cash. Sec
Note 7 for discussion of fair value.

On September 19, 2018, the Company initiated a new Reg A filing that offered shares for sale at a value
of $1.50 per share. During 2018, the Company completed closings under this Reg A filing and sold
66,655 shares of common stock at a value of $1.50 per share for gross proceeds of $99,983 to 38
individual investors. As of December 31, 2018, proceeds of $79,235 were held in escrow and recorded
as an assct on the balance sheet.

The Company issued 4,222 additional warrants to the same service provider during 2018 with an exercise
price of $1.50 per share. The warrants are exercisable upon the date of grant through the contractual
term of 5 years. The Company considered accounting guidance and determined that the warrants are
liability classified. The fair value of the warrants was determined to be $4,362 with the remaining net
proceeds from the Reg A filing allocated to equity. The warrant liability will be re-measured at fair value
cach reporting period. The settlement of the warrant liability will occur once all the warrants have either
been exercised or expire and will not require the Company to pay cash. See Note 7 for discussion of fair
value.

Offering costs totaling $92,107 from both offerings have been netted against the gross proceeds received
during 2018.

During 2018, the Company issued 313,335 shares of common stock to various service providers in
exchange for services performed for the Company. These shares were valued by the Company at the
common stock offering price in its Regulation A offerings live at the time of each issuance, ranging from
$1.00 to $1.50 per share. Total compensation expense recorded for the year ended December 31, 2018
under these arrangements was $360,003.

During 2018, the Company issued 331,900 shares of common stock at $1.00 per share for gross proceeds
of $331,900. Two of these issuances included warrants to purchase a total of 105,000 shares of common
stock at an exercise price of $1.00 per share. The warrants are exercisable upon the date of grant through
the contractual term of 1 year. The Company considered accounting guidance and determined that the
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warrants are equity classified. The fair value of the warrants was determined to be $11,226, which was
netted from the gross proceeds in recording these stock issuances to additional paid-in capital.

Stock Option Plan

During 2017 the Company adopted the 2017 Employee and Consultant Stock Ownership Plan (2017
Plan”). The Company may issue awards up to a maximum of 6,000,000 common shares in the form of
restricted stock units and stock options to employees, directors, and consultants.

On October 21, 2017 the Company issued 2,230,954 stock options to consultants. Each option was fully
vested on the date of grant with an exercise price of $1.00 and expire 10 years from the date of grant.
The Company valued the stock options using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions:
stock price - $1.00; exercise price - $1.00; expected term - 5 years; volatility - 100.6%:; risk free yield -
2.03%: dividend rate - 0%. The grant date fair value for the options was $1,678,301 which was recorded
as stock-based compensation for the year ended December 31, 2017.

During 2018, the Company issued 762,346 stock options to consultants. Each option was fully vested
on the date of grant with exercise prices ranging between $1.00 to $1.50. Each option grant expires 10
years from the date of grant. The Company valued the stock options using the Black-Scholes model
with the following assumptions: expected term - 5 years; volatility — 86.5%; risk free yield between
2.69% and 3.14% (depending on the date of grant); dividend rate - 0%; stock price of $1.00 or $1.50
(based on the price per share available to the public through the applicable Reg A offering); exercise
price of either $1.00 or $1.50. The grant date fair value for the options was $558,508 which was recorded
as stock-based compensation for the year ended December 31, 2018. The weighted average Black-
Scholes fair value and exercise price of stock options issued in 2018 was $0.73 and $1.10 per share,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2018, there were 2,993,300 stock options outstanding and exercisable with a
weighted average exercise price of $1.02 per share. The weighted average duration to expiration of
outstanding options as of December 31, 2018 was 8.9 years. There is no unrecognized compensation
expense as of December 31, 2018 as all outstanding options are fully vested.

Note 5 — Warrants

The following table summarizes the status of the Company’s common stock warrants at December 31,
2018 and 2017 and changes during the years then ended:

Number of Weighted

Underlying Average Exercise
Common stock Warrants Shares Price per Share
Outstanding — December 31, 2016 141,167 $ 1.00
Granted 209500 % 1.00
Outstanding — December 31, 2017 350,667 $ 1.00
Cancelled (150,000) % 1.00
Granted 711,222 $ 1.00
Outstanding — December 31, 2018 911,880 § 1.00
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In conjunction with the 2017 convertible notes — related party (Note 3) the Company issued warrants for
the purchase of a total of 159,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $1.00. The warrants
arc exercisable upon the date of grant through the contractual term of 10 years. The Company evaluated
the warrants determining the warrants are equity classified. Using the Black-Scholes model, the
Company determined the grant-date fair value of the warrants was $126,723 which has been recorded as
a debt discount and additional paid-in-capital. The debt discount was being accreted to interest expense
through the maturity date of December 31, 2018 or 60 days after the Company flies its first prototype of
the TriFan 600. In conjunction with the 2018 convertible notes — related party (Note 3) the Company
cancelled 150,000 warrants previously issued with an exercise price of $1.00 and issued new 214,500
new warrants with an exercise price of $1.50. The warrants are cxercisable upon the date of grant
through the contractual term of 5 years. The Company evaluated the warrants determining the warrants
arc equity classified. Using the Black-Scholes model, the Company determined the net grant-date fair
value of the warrants was $86,333, which has been recorded as a debt discount and additional paid-in-
capital. The debt discounts are being accreted to interest expense through the maturity date of November
1, 2023. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 the Company accreted $55,389 and $18.145,
respectively, of these debt discounts to interest expense.

In conjunction with the 2018 convertible notes — related party (Note 3) from a new investor, the Company
issued warrants for the purchase of a total of 100,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of
$1.00 and 100,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $1.50. The warrants are exercisable
upon the date of grant through the contractual term of 10 years. The Company evaluated the warrants
determining the warrants are equity classified. Using the Black-Scholes model, the Company determined
the grant-date fair value of the warrants was $216,200, which has been recorded as a debt discount and
additional paid-in-capital. The debt discount is being accreted to interest expense through the maturity
date of November 1, 2023 or 60 days after the Company flies its first prototype of the TriFan 600. For
the yearended December 31, 2018 the Company accreted $7,207 of the debt discount to interest expense.

During 2018, the Company issued a service provider warrants for 160,000 shares of common stock at
an exercise price of $0.01 per share. The warrants are exercisable upon the date of grant through the
contractual term of 10 years. The Company cvaluated the warrants determining the warrants are equity
classified. Using the Black-Scholes model, the Company determined the grant-date fair value of the
warrants was $198,720, which has been recorded to operating expenses and additional paid-in capital.

See discussions of additional warrant issuances in conjunction with stock issuances during 2018
discussed in Note 4.

Warrants granted during 2018 were valued using the following Black-Scholes pricing model inputs:

2018
Risk Free Interest Rate 2.47% - 2.96%
Expected Dividend Yield 0.00%
Expected Volatility 86.50%
Expected Life (years) 0.50 - 5.0
Fair Value per Warrant $0.70 - $1.49
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Note 6 - Related Party Transactions

See Notes 2 and 3 for disclosure of related party revolving line-of-credit and convertible notes.

The Company conducts business with a vendor that is owned by one of the Company’s officers and
stockholders and currently provides the Company with consulting CFO work. For the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company paid this vendor $37.482 and $29,370, respectively. The
Company owed this vendor $34,500 and $46,000 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Company conducts business with a consultant that is one of the Company’s officers and currently
provides the Company with CEO services. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the
Company paid this vendor $288,131 and $227.442, respectively. The Company owed this vendor
$100,974 and $75,447 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Company conducts business with a number of vendors and consultants that hold common stock,
options and / or warrants in the Company that provide various services in the normal course of
operations. The Company owed these vendors $313,435 and $248,184 as of December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively.

Note 7 — Fair Value Measurements

Financial assets and liabilitics and nonfinancial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on a
recurring (annual) basis under a framework of a fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs into
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels. This hierarchy gives the highest
priority to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs. Further, financial assets and liabilities should be classified by level in their entirety based upon
the lowest level of input that was significant to the fair value measurement. The three levels of the fair
value hicrarchy are as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
arc accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2: Quoted prices in inactive markets for identical assets or liabilities, quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets, or other observable inputs either directly related to the
asset or liability or derived principally from corroborated observable market data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs due to the fact that there is little or no market activity. This entails

using assumptions in models which estimate what market participants would use in pricing the asset
or liability.
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Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following table summarizes the Company’s financial assets and liabilitics measured on a recurring
basis at fair value at December 31, 2018 by respective level of the fair value hierarchy:

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total

At December 31, 2018:

Liabilities:

Warrant liability $ - $ 227472 $ - $ 227472
$ - $ 227472 $ - $ 227472

At December 31, 2017:

Liabilities:

Warrant liability $ - $ 150,804 $ - _§ 150.804
$ - $ 150,804 $ - $ 150.804

There were no financial assets and liabilitics measured on a non-recurring basis as of December 31, 2018
or December 31, 2017.

The warrants were valued at the time of grant using the Black-Scholes model. Key assumptions include
a 10-year term, volatility of 86.5%, and no expected dividends.

Note 8 - Commitments and Contingencies

Consulting Agreements

On July 8, 2015, the Company entered into an agreement with a third-party consultant for services
relating to operating a web-based platform for prospective investors. The compensation is an
administrative fee equal to $50 per investor. The agreement had an original effective date until July 8,
2016 and was subsequently extended to August 31,2017 and later extended again to December 31, 2018.
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company paid this consultant $9.400 and $11.450,
respectively. No amounts were owed as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 to this consultant.

During 2018, the Company entered into an agreement with this same vendor for its new Reg A filing.
The fees charged under this new agreement included $25,000 for the build and creation of the Company’s
campaign page, an administrative fee equal to $50 per investor and warrants based on the number of
investors that ultimately invest. The Company paid this consultant $5.800 during 2018. The Company
owed this vendor $25,605 as of December 31, 2018.

During 2015, the Company engaged a broker-dealer consultant to perform administrative functions in
connection with the 1-A Offering in addition to acting as the escrow agent. Compensation for this
consultant is $2 per domestic investor for the anti-money-laundering check and a fee equal to 1.0% of
the gross proceeds from the sale of the shares offered. If the Company clects to terminate the 1-A
Offering prior to its completion, the Company has agreed to reimburse the consultant for its out-of-
pocket expenses incurred in connection with the services provided under the agreement. Additionally,
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the Company will pay $225 for account set-up and $25 per month for so long as the 1-A Offering is
being conducted, but in no event longer than two years ($600 in total fees), and up to $15 per investor
for processing incoming funds. The Company will pay an affiliated company of the consultant, a
technology service provider, $4 for each subscription agreement executed via electronic signature. The
agreement originally terminated on January 21, 2017 but was amended to include a new termination date
of December 31, 2018.

During 2018, the Company entered into an agreement with this same vendor for its new Reg A filing.
The fees charged under this new agreement included $5 per domestic investor for the anti-money-
laundering check and a fee equal to 0.5% of the gross proceeds from the sale of the shares offered. If the
Company elects to terminate the offering prior to its completion, the Company has agreed to reimburse
the consultant for its out-of -pocket expenses incurred in connection with the services provided under the
agreement. Additionally, the Company will pay $500 for account set-up and $35 per month for so long
as the offering is being conducted, but in no event longer than one year ($420 in total fees), and up to
$15 per investor for processing incoming funds. The Company will pay an affiliated company of the
consultant, a technology service provider, $3 for each subscription agreement executed via electronic
signature. The agreement remains effective for as long as the offering remains open and active.

Litigation

On January 11. 2018, a lawsuit was filed against the Company seeking to recover more than $222,000
in fees for alleged breach of contract related to engineering work performed by the plaintiff, a related
party. On March 6, 2018, the Company filed counterclaims secking more than $100,000 for breach of
contract and breach of fiduciary duty for failure to perform engineering work the plaintiff agreed to
perform and refusal to return intellectual property and work product to the Company. The Company has
included in accounts payable — related party $141,000 in engineering services related to this case. The
Company reached a settlement agreement in April 2019 that resolved these claims. The Company agreed
to pay $210,000 in exchange for full settlement of the claims and the relinquishment of certain common
stock owned by a principal of the plaintiff.

Note 9 — Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes as set forth in ASC 740, Income
Taxes. Under the liability method, deferred taxes are determined based on the temporary differences
between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in
cffect during the years in which the basis differences reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded when
itis unlikely that the deferred tax assets will be realized.

The income tax provision from operations consists of the following:

December 31,

2018 2017
Current
Federal $ - $ -
State . B
3 $ -
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Deferred
Federal $ (532,283) $ (550.157)
State (92,711) (121,668)
Valuation allowance 624,994 671,825

$ - § -

A reconciliation between the expected federal income tax rate and the actual tax rate is as follows:

December 31,
2018 2017
Computed income taxes at 21% and 21% $  (797.738) $ (1.117.493)
Increase in income taxes resulting from:
State and local income taxes, net of federal impact (138,947) (97,701)
Change in valuation allowance 624,994 671,825
Change in tax rate - 540467
Non-deductibles and other 311.691 2902
Provision for income taxes - -
A summary of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
December 31,
2018 2017
Deferred tax assets
Accrued expenses $ 246990 § 220,819
Stock compensation 702,976 427,493
Loss carryforwards 673.496 346.308
Total deferred tax assets 1,623,462 994,620
Valuation allowance (1.623.462) (994.620)

Net deferred tax assets - ;

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company has federal net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $2.731,382 and $1.404.000. respectively, for income tax purposes that begin to expire
starting in 2037. Due to uncertainty as to the Company’s ability to generate sufficient taxable income
in the future to utilize the net operating loss carryforwards before they begin to expire in 2037, the
Company has recorded a full valuation allowance to reduce the net deferred tax asset to zero.

There are no significant matters determined to be unrecognized tax benefits taken or expected to be taken
in a tax return, in accordance with ASC 740 “Income Taxes”, which clarifies the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the financial statements and have been recorded on the
Company’s financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. The Company does
not anticipate a material change to unrecognized tax benefits in the next twelve months.
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In December 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Act”) was enacted into law and the new
legislation contains several key tax provisions that affected the Company, including a reduction of the
corporate income tax rate to 21% cffective January 1, 2018, among others. The Company is required to
recognize the effect of the tax law changes in the period of enactment, such as determining the transition
tax, remeasuring deferred tax assets and liabilities, as well as reassessing the net realizability of our
deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company used the new tax rates in calculating its 2018 and 2017
deferred tax assets, resulting in a decrease of its December 31, 2017 and prior generated net deferred tax
assets of $540,467.

The Company files U.S. federal and statec income tax returns. All previous tax returns have been filed.
All tax periods since inception remain open to examination by the taxing jurisdictions to which the

Company is subject.

Note 10 - Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated all subsequent events through the auditors’™ report date, which is the date
the financial statements were available for issuance. There were no subsequent events that required
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
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In thisSemi Annval Repon, refercaces 10 “XTL "™ “we,” “ta." “ow.” o the “company” mean XTI Avcrafi Company

THISSEMIANNUAL REPORT MAY CONTAIN FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS AND INFORMATION RELATING TO, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE COMPANY, ITS BUSINESS PLANAND
STRATEGY, AND ITS INDUSTRY. THESE FORWARD-L OOKING STATEMENTS ARE BASED ON THE BELIEF S OF, ASSUMPTIONS MADE BY, AND INFORMATION CURRENTLY AVAILABLETO THE
COMPANY'S MANAG EMENT. WHEN USED IN THE OFFERING MATERIALS, THE WORDS“ESTIMATE," “PROJECT," “BELIEVE," “ANTICIPATE," “INTEND," “EXPECT" AND SIMILAR EXPRESSIONS
ARE INTENDED TO IDENTIFY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, THESE STATEMENTS REFLECT MANAGEMENT'S CURRENT VIEWS WITH RESPECT TO FUTURE EVENTS AND ARE SUBJECTTO
RISKSAND UNCERTAINTIES THAT COULD CAUSE THE COMPANY'S ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFF ER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE CONTAINED IN THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
INVESTORS ARE CAUTIONED NOT TO PLACE UNDUE RELIANCE ON THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, WHICH SPEAK ONLY AS OF THE DATE ON WHICH THEY ARE MADE.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALY SISOF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of oparations shou l be nad in conjunction with our financial stalements and the relatod noles ind uded in this semi-annual xeport, & wdlas with our ol¥ering slatement
ariginally quali bed on Seplamber | 7, 201 8 and subscquent amendmaent qualificd on Scpiember 16, 2019. The following discussion contains forward-kooking statements that refloct our plans, estimates, and belicfs. Our actual results
would diffa mataially fiom those discussed in the forwand Jooking statements.

General Information

Thecompany was incarporated in October 2009. No operations occurred untilthe fowrth quarier of 201 2. Since then we have boen engaged primarily in developing the design and engineerin g conogpts for the TriFan 600and secking
funds from investors 1o fund that devdopment. We compldad the conoeptual engincening repant fix the TeiFan 600in April 200 4 and comp keted our business modd in Decanber2014.

Opersting Results
We have nol yet gencrated any rovenucs and do not exped 1o do so until dlta receiving FAA certification for the TriFan 600. Such certification may nol comeuntil 2023 orlata.

Acrass 2017, 201 8, and the first half of 201 9, we reacived S 1,685,000 for a combination of depasits and con vertible notes that represent orders for 81 airara 0l under our Airaall Rescrvation Depasit A greemant. Those fands will not be
recorded & revenuc until the anders arc delivared, which may not be for many yaars or & all ifwe donot deliveraircraft 1o thase customers. T he deposits serve ko prioritize arders when the airarall beco mes available for delivery.
Customers making depasits arcnot obligated %o purchase aircrall until they exccute a defimitive purchase agreement. Customers may request relum of their depasit any time up until the exccution of a purchase agreemen.

Six-Months Ended June 30, 2019 Compared to Six-Mon ths Ended June 30, 2018 Opaating cxpenscs for the sixmanths ended Junc 30, 201 9 was appraximaicly 99% gcalar thanopaating expenses forthe six-months ended Junc 30,
2018 The principal drivers of the increascin spending came from an incraese in stock compens alion cxpense included within general and adminis trati ve expanses offsct by reductions inconocptual design and sales and marketing
apasc For instance, conoeptual desi gn casts %o advance development of the Tri Fan 600 and begin production of our proaf of concepl airarall ware dearcasod from 54 15,800 o $158, 444 (2 decrcase of approximaicly 62%). Sales and
markding cxpense docreased from 821,398 10 §9,146 (a decrarse o Fappraximatcly 57%) General and adminis et ive costs were incraased from S882.019 10 82,456 258 (an increasc of approximaicly 178%) This inarcase was the result
of issuing approximaicly $1,796, 113 in options and wamrants %o mambers o [1he ¢ xecuti ve managanaent icam and otha service providers as compensation for savices

Imarest expanse for this time period inarcased fiom $100,345 10 $273,77 2 a5 we continued to rely on lozn financing from rd ated partics (discussed bedow). Intarest expense in the six-months ended Junc 30, 2019 also included acarction
of dbt discount of $190,09 8 associated with the wamants gramed with the con vertible notes issued in 20 18 and 2019,

As a result, ournd Joss for the six-mon ths ended Junc 30, 201 9 was S(2,897,620) as compared 1o 2 net lass of $(1,419,562) fur the six-months ended Junc 30, 2018, anincrease of appro ximatcly 104%. Our sccumulated deficit 3t Junc
30, 2019 was S(11,997,508).

Liyuidity and C pital Resources

June 30, 019 AsofJunc 30, 2019, wehad cash of $121,75%9 and 2 working capital deficitof S(2 448,706) & compand 1o cash of $556,847 and & working capital deficit of $(1,794,032) a1 Decamber 31, 2018 . Additional curren | asscts
include $56,758 heldin cscrow fiom the sale of securitics und er the ongoing Ragulation A Oflcring

As with the sixmonths ended Junc 30, 2018, for the six months ended Junc 30, 2019, we fundad our operstions primanly throug h the sale of commaon stock %o investors under Regulation A These sal os accounied for net proceeds of
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mAcrest ata rake of 3.0% per snoum. We abso repaid $30,000 in convertible notes and issued 360,000 in new convartib ke notes

Incdluded in the cumrent lisbdities ax comvertible notkes sswod %o related partics. OFf dhe 52,027,027 aclatod party nobe Kability, $763,1 % & owed to David Brody. The rtible note bas a primeipal amount of $763, 176 and accreed
mAerest ata rate of 3.09% per snum. The convertible note b difToremt aty dates n gont wpon e pany seuring different kevels of mvestment from gird parties. Mr Brody bas the night %o secave repayment of e note wpon
matamy in ather cash or in shanes of common stock of g company. The koan with Mr. Brody is mchedod & Exhabit 6.9 to our Oflening Statement on e Form 1A The company akso saceived koans from Jeflrey Pino, who has sinoe
passed away The nowes h\capri:'v:hmulnfﬂ”l&ud barimtenst atarake of 3.0% per annum . In February 2019, the etate of Mz Pino agreedto accept repyment of the prinopal amount of e notes without imerast

mexchamge for S g 1he nokes. The company rnepaid $30,000 of these notes i e six mon s endod )-c 30, 2019 The motes ware payable admmﬂ:ndmuzhidnshhbm 6.10 and 6.1) 10 our Olfermg
Statement an the Foem - - A The company akso reacived a loan from Robert Denchry i exchs fora =) ynote. The ol mote hiss ape 1 amount of $500,000 and bears mtewest o a rate of 10.0% por anmum.
1n October 2018, the peincipal and accrwod imterest on $his note (totaling S550,000) phes an ddm-:l S165.000 ul’n:‘ cash were combined Mo a ew n\\:nbk -ut. with aprncipal balince ofS$715,000 The coigmal comvertitie note
with Mr. Denchy was canoelhod & part of this new note. The remaiming note bairs imterest at arate of 10.0% per anmum. The convertibke note with Mr Denchy & indudad as Exhibit 6 14 % erllllg Sutonenton & Fomm 1-Aandis
mare fully desaribod bdow in “Interest of Management and O ors in Certain Trmsactions ™ The company ako reacived a Joan from Sakeam Zabeer, a Jant and shaxcholder of e pany, in amge fora ertibke note. The
note b a primcipal amownt of $30,000 and bears imferest ata rate of 10.0% per annum. The boan with Mr. Zabcer isinchoded as Exhibit 6.15 %0 0wr O flesimg Statement on @ Farm 1-A.

[& wily, the ¥ d ditiomal capital 0 o 1f we do mot recai ve funding fiom private investons orour Regulstion A OlTaing, we anticipate $at the company will runowt o f funding inthe sscond half of
29I9bucdnno-r cumrent :ai balince and bum tate Saks o peivate mvestors may invol ve primazy sales by $he company o different ban tosein e Rggulstion AO Mening. Ourability to racenve additional imvestor financing
may be hanned shou M aflikakes and ofer boldas of ourscouritios stvempt Yo ol teir boldings.

Plan of Operations

The company has developed a detailod plan %o complete #s pecliminsy design phase, hire key members of its management tam, expand sakes and markating eflorts and complete detailoed design and development work to support e

completion ofa 65% scak and preduction ofa full scak Nyng proe fofcomeept amaaft The 6 5% scale prototype & cumrently bemgtestod. The full scak sircraft & expected to tak ¢ approxe ty 2.0 yeas %o prodwor and $he company

willl roquize $25 milhion i total fundng during s penod. Once the [l scake proo § of concept has boen comphted and demomstzated, the company will seck FAA cettification for the TriFan 600 and begin preparations for production

and manufactr ing of e arcrafl. The exact time and cost to socure FAA cati fication and commeno: prodwdtion & not known, but we estimate @t @ will ake 4 % 5 years and roquire ot keast $175 million n additional funding aflr
mpletion o fthe proo faf’

Imvestors will noke that heabove plan is a significant change fiom ouron gmal plan Our origmal plan caled fora 600 8 )\vlimhu. and a total cost of mooe thdeﬂim The new plan sequires half of e totl funding and can be
accompleshed in a shorter fime faame. The switch to a hybad-ckanc propu bion systam has yidded si gni ficant savings i e enge g and devel op at will be required %o build and certify $e acrall This hmge s ako
rodwoed the expected sake price of éie sircralt from sppmo ximasely S 12 million %o only 36.5 million. The company will stll be able to achieve e same profit masgins o thes lower price. We beliove s change in expected sake price will
expand the potan tial market for owr sixrafl We bdieve e combingtion o e Jower tots ] cost o fdevekop and the expanded market p al e probability of 5 fully doveloping, finding and fly ing the TriFan 600

With the reoeipt of sullicsnt i ng, wewill ] %0 locws our om four ey areas: (i) hiring key burs of the scam, () p L dditiomal funding, (i) continuingdevelopment of hicairaalt; and (v)
ding sl and makcting to enablethe pany %o take refimdable cwtomer depasis. Withthe $1,438,550 mu\\dhllgml& from the sale of Camman Stock under Regulation A, Common Stock dixcetly to mnvestors and e
af il ¢ notes combined with thei of options % and key vendaors, we moved forwasd in cach effortin 200 8. We have reosived additional oot proceeds of $75.518 from the sale ofCommon Stock under
Regulstion A between Jamsary 1, 2019 and Augwst 15,2019

2

Wi willl comtimee owrdesign and develop ellorts by engag vh:) swb % asset in e cration of both e 65% scale and full scake proof of coneept awcralt. Thescawaalt will belp w0 identify and solve posntial challenges
o ocrtain critical path systems of e arcralt incheding & engins, ba ission and fly-by-wiresystom. Koy mikestoms forthes prooess will nclude:

. Complateand fly e 65% scale proo§ of concept airenft

. Intiste dialoge: with vendors of key compoments of the Il scale poofof concept airemft

. Commission and complatc trade stadics

. Complate preliminary design of aitial path systems

. Complete and fly e sixraft
We -ﬂl:d-.‘lu:-:wbpn iotermal and external sakes and maskating capabilty o incrase awareness of G airaalt and position e company % taking refindsdk depasits and presakes orders. Thes will be

Tihed with the [ollowi

. Comtmue exesting sales and markating effors

. Build and fly a sdbscak aeplme

. Anend sndexhibt @ majormtemational wade shows

. Revenve additional refundab) d dposit arders fir &e TriFan 600
We bebieve $at inaeasing awareness o Nibe sixralt and d d d 1hrough orders will ensb ke the company to rase additional capital in the futwe more asily. To dake, S company has reaeivod arders and depasits

for 81 awcrafl npresenting e potertial for roughly $525 mlmn!’l’um revaue. However, @i revenae may not be camed fir many years, oratall if costomas cancd dheir deposits or we do not deliver airaall %o those customens.

The mi ks bones i dentified above asvume that we arc able %o raise e full $22.5 million from our on going Regulstion AolTaimg. In éat event, $he company would expect to accomplish &l of e above milestones within e first 24
months. However, we have devdoped our spending plans in cach o féhese areas (o be scalsble to the amount of money that we misse m owr Regulition A olfering. While raising si gnificant funds in our Regulation Ao flering will allow ws
%0 pawse some capital raising activities, we will need additional capital to complete our development of e proof of comceptand beyond as discwssed above. As vuch, we arc pursuing mu Miple options lor such fanding rather than rulying
om ome source We badieve fimding will come fiom a combimation of short-tonm and long-%eem sowrces, inchoding potential industry partners and supplias.

3

OTHER INFORMATION

Mzag ofthe company bas d the requ of the Foom 1-U and detamined $hat no othar mformation & aquirad to be incheded in dhis sami-anmal report tat would have been incheded in e Form 1-U
Rl

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The balaince sheats of X T Aircalt Compamy for the six-months ended Jume 30, 2019 and fiscal year ended Decamber 31, 2018, and e mlcmns of operations, and cash flows of XT] Arcraft Company for the six-mon s ended June
30,2019 and 201 Barc inchedod in s wemi-anmual report. In dhe opimion o f manag all ad) y to make e itaim fi L not misleading have boen included
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XTIAIRCRAFT COMPANY
Balance Sheets
June 3, 2019 December 31,
(Unaudited) 018
Assets
Cument assets
Cash 12379 § 556,847
Escrow receivable 56,758 86885
Total curnnt asscts 180,517 41,712
Noo-curment asscts
Patent, Net 206,503 197,720
Trademarks 1518 7518
Total nom-oarrent asscts 214,021 205238
Total asscts 394,518 s S48970
Lisbdities and Stockholders' Deficit
Cument linbilitics
Accounts paysdle 115964 S 432262
Accounts payable - rclated panty 560,718 448509
Acaued btaest 200,081 120,502
Customer Deposit 265,000 175,000
Comvertible motes - related party, camrent portion 920443 90444
Revolvimg lincof~cradit - related party 119544 143,75
Warant Eability 27412 27472
Total cuznemt abilitics 2,629222 2437764
Lomg-Term Luabillitics
Comvertible notes - rdated party, et of cument portion, net of wmamontized discount of S158.4 6 and S348.515 as of June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respec Svely 1,106,584 916,485
Total liabilitics 3,735.806 3354 249
Commi and comting
Stockholas' deficit
Commen stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000,000 sharcs aut horieed at Jume 30, 2019 and Docember 31, 2018, and 38,670,453 and 38476770 shares i ssucd and out standing,
xspectivdy 318553 18477
Additional paid-m capital - cont bution from stockholda £,617.687 6,556,891
Retained deficit {11.997.508) (9.100.649)
Tatal sockholdens” deficit 3.341.265) (2.505.279)
Total Eabilitics snd stockholders’ deficit 194518 § £48.970
Sce nows 0 Mmancial sistanonts.
2
XTI AIRCRAFT COMPANY
Statements of Operations
For the Six Months Ended
June 30,
(Unaudited)
19 2018
Openting capenses
Comceptual design 158444 § 415500
Sales and markatmg 9146 21398
Genenl and admmis it ive 2456258 £$2.019
Total operating expemses 2.621.848 1319217
Openting lass (2621 848) (1319219
Interest expmse 213.0m12) (100.345)
Netloss Q5976200 S (1.419.562)
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XTI AIRCRAFT COMPANY

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Six Months Ended
June 30,
{Unaudited)
]9 MR
Cash Nlows from op@ating achivites
Netloss s (2.897.620) S (1.419.562)
Adjyestments to recomeide net loss 0 net cash wsed b operiting adiivites
Amertization 6,572 2408
A wn of debt i 10 tarest exp 190,098 54258
Stock issmnce for compensation 190,000 130,000
Stock compens alion expense 1,617,155 489,243
Warant com pemsition ex peme 178,958 -
(hmges 0 opeasting assets and labilities
Deposits - -
Propasds - -
Tradenzk - P
Accoumts payable (96.298) 136987
Accousnts payable - related party 111309 (51,632)
Customer Deposit 90,000 10,000
Accroed interst 79.579 46,057
2367872 F3%
Net cash wsod in operating activities (529.748) (602.216)
Cah flows from investing acti vitkes
(15.355) (69.416)
Net ch wsad i mvesting acinitis (15.355) ©9416)
Cash flows fiom fimancing activities
Procecds fiom comvertible motes 30,000 -
Procecds fmm Reg A offering. met 75518 286,586
Procecds hdd i escrow 30,127 -
Revolving lincofcradit, met (23.631) (21,980)
Pmooceds fmmn commeon stock sswnce - 331,950
Net cash provided by fi ingactvities 112014 596,556
Net imcrase in cash (433,088) (15,076
Cash -beaginning of period 556847 41697
Cash -end of period s 12759 § 161 597
Sex motes to fimancial sigenents
4
XTIAIRCRAFT COMPANY
Notes to Financial Stasements
Notc | - Description of Business and Sign ificant Accounting Policies
XTIA:ril Company (e “Compamy,” “XT1" or “we™) & a pavakely ownad aviation basi od im Dek: 0 2009 w dovelop vatical takoofl awphines XTI & an carlystage sixrall maoalactarer that s cocating 3
Tev bt iom fir e buse ation indesty. Oncedeveloped, this \\nalhkdl'urpha.m.hia will offer pomt4o-pomt ravd to redwor btal travd time by decaasing e spest driving %o and f1om anairpont befere
cmoyng tuh.ncﬁsch privak jat.
Simo inoeption, e Company has been engaged primanly i doveloping the design and engm ocring com @t's for the TriFan and socking finds fromi to fand Bt develop
Mamaeomont’s Plags
T accompan ying fi al Bave been po 3 gomgconcem s, which ok dzasonof assets and b pon of Kb -tgmim course of business. As of June 30, 2019, the Company hias
cash mdescrow reacivables lotaling 180,517, mrﬂlnbiunohthL&‘)ZD.udlmsﬁumno.nnnbdqsu 97 mxmqmw dowdt about the Company'sability o o as 3 going
In cedar fum.(.unp-ylo e 35 3 gong ‘s plan & %o expand its [imancing plams 1o mdlwde pukential additiond dosings wnder R ioms A oflen Nondhdss, %o dee the Company b mot acco mplis hod

2 fimancing of the sia: neadod %o pat e (.nnwlyua:ﬂﬂsvp.nnghm Thae can beno assumnce at e Company willl be able to seoue a&lmld.b‘o-qul) ﬁnn:-;wlbubl.hobu-punn\ cash flow operations, or
that, if the Company & soocessful i sy of those actions, those actions will produos adaguate cash flow 1o ensb ke the Company %o mact ﬁu--.tbwnm lfh. Company is umable fo obtsn additional debt or equity finmon g, operations

may sced o berodword orceased Theinsbility or fadare %o secure adeguate debt or equity fimancing could adwe mely affoct the Company's bass dimon, :d resalts ofoparations
Cash
The Company holds cash in a checking aocount . The Company o al ly Mo it positions with, and the aedit guality of, the financial s Wutions with which @t holds cash

Intanathle Acesse

Intamgib e assets ase recorded at historical cost. These assets are sohated to kegal costs & dm p ,puns:ni & ks %o potect the (.unpuy's -\llcml property. 1f the Company deteammes 1€ will abandon these efforts, or
if e Umitad Stales Patent and Trademark Of e indicats e pakents or trad emarks will mot be P pitali ard cost would be exp ly. The Company ameortiass pakents over a | Sycarlife omor awasded Asof Jame
30,2019 and Decemnber 31, 2018, SM2.400 and S227,046, lup.dm.ly of patents had been awarded. Ammlmnap.m of 56,572 and S2.400 has boen raccrded for the : sixmonth period ended Jame 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
Forpmding pakeats and trademasks, the Company will begm wing 0w tharrespective weefil lives once awardad.

XTIAIRCRAFT COMPANY



Notes to Financial Staternents

Note | - Description of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Conceptual Design Costs

(.onxwidam:mxahm[mdbnmmhmd&vmundﬁc pany are cxpenvod as & d These costs 2:kate tothe design and crastion of the Trifan. For the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 201K te
sal design cost e of SISE 444 and S415.800, pespectively.

s i .

The cost of advertising and pr om &5 cxpensed & od . For the six months ended Junc 30, 20 19and 2018, the Companyi d adverntsing and p on o of 59,146 od $21 398, repectively. As of Junc 30, 2019 snd

2018, the Company bad no d advert ising cxpasc ded as babiliticsin the accompanying balanoc sheets.

losoms Taxcs

The Company d fruman $ coeporation furtax pup 0 aC carporaion effective Soptamber 26, 2016, The Company folbows guidance fir mcome tawes and unocttaim tax positions. Defianed imcome taxes are provided for the

dilforences batworn the bases of assets and labilities for fmandia reporting and imcome tax pwposes. Tax positions meeting the more-lik cy 4 hannot recogaition threshold arc din & with socown ting guidance A

valuaticas alkrwaine is eatablistid wlcn socenary (waedue dfeared laa avwts bl auncunt apensad o b scaliead. Nogiovinion fin o tanes was puovidal fur e paiad foen Jussary 1, 2015 Sl Scpcnbec 25, 2016, as the
stockholcss of the Company were Swed on their props shaze of the Company's income

Imerest and pemal th sated with tax positions arc dod in the penod d as gemeral and ad mimistrative expanses. Howevez, no imerest or pemal tics have been assessed as of June 30, 2019.

Use of Estimates

The pr wom of [inmcil & with L iphs genenally accptod i the United Stakes of Ametics requins 2 o make ot a=d it soms that alloct the reported of svatsand
hhhesad&:lusmd:uumamudhhhuatcdu:di:" al and the reponed of revenes and expens o duning the repoeting paiods. Actud mesults could differ frum those estimates.
Lomg Lived Assaty

Lomg-lived asots principally imchede mtangible sssats. The Company evalwates komgdivad asscts [or mpazment wheneverevents or changes in ciroumstances indicate that the curyimg walue ofthe assat may not be eco verable.

is od by ing expected future cash Mows (undisoountcd and befioes mtarest ) to the carrying vakee of the assets I mpaionant ex s, the amount of ImpaEment is measwrad as the dilferenos betwean the net
burkvinc of e ssets and thir estimated fair vaboe. The Company bdseves $hat no impaisnent of any domg-lived &isets existed & June 30, 2019 and 2018

XTIAIRCRAFT COMPANY

Notes to Financial Staternents

el Revolving Lineof -Credit - od

On Jamary 1, 200 6, the Company catercd mto arevolving linco Fexedit with 3 stockholder of the Comg which allowad the Companay %o bemow up %o 52 50,000. Undear serms of the ggreament, balances drawn om the rovo lving linc-
af-credit bear mierest of 1% anmually. The revolving linc-of-aedit has @ maturty dteof Jamuary 1, 2020 and thoough the dawe the fimanciaks were available % be ssucd hasnot been npad by the Compny. As of June 30, 2019 and
Deocmber 31, 2018, the talance onthe revolving line-of-credit wasS 119,544 and S143,175, respectively.

Neted- Conrentible Notcr- Related Paity
InAugust 2015, the revolving lineof-credit ag) was supseded and rplaced by a comvertib ke not agrecment. The stodk holder xmains the Ionder under this agrecment. The convatib ke note has a principal amowmnt of $763,176
and accros mterest ata rete of 3% peranmum, provided that om and afler the maturity dates(noted below) imtarest shall accree from a nd after such date on the unpaid principdl and dll socrocd but wnpaid mderest ofthe ot ata racal
10% per snmum. The able noke upom the Com pany ing different devds of investment from third parties as follows:

. $250000 omce the Company ves at keast SS.0 million i %otal flum investons;

. $250,000 omce the Company ives at kast S10.0 million in %otal from investors; and

. $263,176 omce the Company ives at kast S1S.0 million in total from mvestos
The stockbolderbas the night to receive repayment of the note upon matity m cther cash or m shases of stock of the Company. Thetams of the xom state that the shares 1o be issued to the stoddho Mer upon @ comvension
shall be ogual 10 the vakee of shares basaed om 2 S35 million pre-moncy vahstion of the Company. The ion may occur at @y time om or befoas the third matusity date noted above The stockholder, at his option, may cawse all or
any poetion of the unpaid principal and any acowed but unpaid mterest to be comverted intocommen stock of the Company. As of June 30, 2019 and Deocmber 31, 2018, the ding balano: was $763,176.
During 2015, e Compay emtered into 3 comvestible note with a dtnt and Board berof the Company. The note hasa principal smount of $97 26 8and boars intcrest & a refe of 3.0% per smnum. The holda of this nokc may

dermand repayment of thenokat any time and hias the option to xea ve payment of the noke i either cash or in shares of common stock of the Compaay based on the fair market vakoe of the Company's commen stock on the date of
the comversion. As ofJune 30, 2019 and Decamber 31, 2018, the outstanding balance was 567,268 and 59726 K repectivdy.

Durmg 2017, e Campay entend imtoa ible notewitha dtant and Boaxd ber of the Compamry. The note has a principal amount of SS00,000and accrues mterest at @ mtcof 10.0%peranmum, provided that on and afler
the ma turity deie of November202) imtarest shall accree from and afler such date on $he unpasd principal and all accreed but wpaid mcmest of the note & @ s of 120% perasmum. In Octobar 201K, éhe prine jul and sccruad miceston
this note (%o saling S 550,000) phes an additional S 16 5,000 of new cash ware combined mtoa mew rtibke note with aprincipal takmor of S71S,000. The original convertible note was canoclled as pat of this new noe. The remaiming
nok bars mlaest ata retcof 10.0% peranmum.

The holder of this note bas the night to reca ve repaymant of the note wpon mateity i cithercash or i shaxes o fcommon stock of the Company & a vakee of $1.00 par share. The convarsion may ovcar at sy time on or before November
1, 2023 On the dat of ssuance, the Company was activdy selling shares of it common stock & S1.50 per shase. Ths, the Company deton amed there was @ bimcficial conversion feslun on the date of the sssaace The Company
recorded 3 discount of $579,851 rdated 10 the beneficial comvarsion fGature This smount was fully amorticad %o imterest expense dwring 2018 bocawse the note 8 immediasd y comvertible imto commen stock.

Durmg 2017, e Compny entared o aconvatible note witha et and stockholderof e Company. The note has @ principal amount of $30.000and accoues mterost at a make of 10(Peperanmum, provided that on and afta the
matunity dates (noted bdow) imterest shall acemoe frum and after suchdak on the unpaid principal and all cd but unpaid imerest of the notcat a rak of 120% peranmum.

The bolder of this note bas the sight to raceive ngpayment of the note wpon maturity m cithercash orim shans o fcommon stodk of the Company at a vake of $1.00 par share. The conversion may occur at sy time on or befure the
matwity date noked bddow.

The convertible nok matures wpon the carkier of -
* 60 days after the Company flies its first prototype ofthe Trl'an 600; or
*  Decenber 31,2018

Durmg 2018, the Campany emtenod imo 2 ible note witha dtant of the Company. The notk has 2 principal amount of S550,000 and accrucs imtarest ata rae of 10.0% per soum, provided that om and after $he matunty dase
(noted below) imtarest shall accruee lrom and afler such datc on the unpaid primcipal and all acorwed but unpaid miesest of the note ata reteof 12.0% peranmum

The hobder of this note has the 5ight to recd ve repayment of the note upon matunty i aithercash or in shaoes o fcommon stodk of the Company at a vakee of S1.00 pashx The convession may oocer 3t ay time om or before November
1,2023. On the da of iswance, the Company was activdy selling shares o its common stock at S1.SOper share. Thss, the G 3 med thae was abenefics wom fizatare on the date of the ssuance. The Company
recorded a discount of $500 .7 80 rdatad to the bene ficial comvarsion festure This amount was fully amontiad %o mterest expense Mﬂcmll ‘bocawse the noke is Immediatcly comvertiblc into common stock.




XTI AIRCRAFT COMPANY
Notes 10 Finand al Ststements
Nete 4 - Steckholders’ Eqgily
On December 30,201 4, the Baard of Directars amended and approved the ssthorwation of 100,000,000 s hares of commin stock with a par value of S0.001.

On January 1, 2015, the Company granted 10,869,565 shares %o the Company's Board of Dirccton, O flicess, and comsultants. These shares wiare recorded at par value oS0 001, which was the grant date fair valoe of the comman stock.
Atvuriass times during 20 15, the Company's Founder cantributed a fotal of 5272,3 N0 and was gransed 24,900,000 shares of commeon stock.

On Sepremer 23, 2016, the Campany camplded @ initia] chose under its Reg A fling. The Company soMd 559,274 shares of common stock at a value of 51.00 pershare for gross proceeds of $559,274 %0 243 different mdividual
mvestars. As of June 30, 2018, proceeds of 565.503 were held in escrow and recarded a5 anasset on the balance sheet

In:q_mnlﬁ.u-hl:kxtnndals RqAﬁhgk(.mpnylmxdlll!“? 103 senvice provider %o purch stock with an exercise price of $0.30 perwartant. The waurrants arc exercisd k fora padof 10
years. The C. ad o ined that the arc hiability classifed. mln\uhxork“nm‘td:mm-dwbcsuﬁ.du wilh the remaining S328.482 net procacds from the Reg A filing
allocaked %0 equity. The warnnt lability will be remasurad at fair value cach reportingperiod | The satflement o fhe warrant lability will occur ance all the warrants have cither been exercised ar expire and will not require the
Company %o pay cash.

During 2017, the Campany completed dosings under ils Reg A Filing and sold 378, 178 shares of comman stock at avaloe of 51.00 pershare for gross proceedsof $378,178 w0 452 different individual mvestoss . As of December 31,
2017, prcecds of 565,503 wex held in escrowand recosdod as an asset on the balance sheet. Offoring costs totaling 525,482 have been nethed agaimst the gross prooceds received during 2017,

The Company issued 50,500 additional warants 1o the same service provider durimg 2017 The Comp idered i idanoe and & med that the nhh'hty dassified. The fair walocolMhe warats was
determimed %o be 540,259, with the xmaining 5312,937 net proceads from the Reg A filing allocated htquty The warrant hbiny“llhz re-masured at {air value aach repasting period. The setdh of the warat lability willoccur
once all the warants have cithar boen exarcised ar expire and will not xquire the Campany to pay cash. Sec Noke 7 {or discus siom o f fair valoue.

During 2018, the Camp keted additiomal chos ings under its Reg A Filing andsold 319,863 shaxs of common stock & avalueof51.00 per shax for gross peoceads of $319,863 %0 180 diflferent individ val imvestars. As of Jume 30,
2019 and December 31, 201! pm:t«kafSOud 57650 respectively, ware held in escrow and recorded as an asset an the balanoe sheet for this olferimg. This offaing was dosed in July 2018

Tht(.anwlyuaxd!?SOOddmﬂ waTsmts 10 the same service provider durimg 2018 with an exercise price 051,00 pershare. The wamrants are exercisable upon the dale o fgnat through the contractual tam of 10 years. The

ik and & med that the arc liability classified The fair waloe ofthe wanats was determimed 1o be $30,960, with the remaining net prooceds from the Reg A filimgallocated %o equity.
Th:-m Ilﬁiny‘itxmmnmcd A fair value cach reporting pesiod. The setflanent of the warnnt lability will occur anoe all the warants have cither been exercised ar expire and will nol require the Companty 10 pay cash. Sec
Note 7 for discus siom o f [air valoe.

On Septamber 19, 2018, e Company mitiated 3 new Reg A filing bt offered shases for sake ata valoe of §1.50 per shae. Durmg 2018, the Company camphded dosings under this Reg A filing and sold 66,6 55 shxes of common stock
at a value of §1.50 per share lor gross proceeds of 599,983 10 38 mdividual & AsofDy be 31,2018, p ds of §79,23 § ware held in escrow and recorded as an asset an the lulamoe shoet

During the first six momths of 2019, the Company complted dosings under this Reg A [iling and so)d 62,046 shares of common stock at a value of 51.50 per share for gross proceads of $93,069 %o 60 individual mveskes. As of June 30,
2019, proocads of §56,758 wex held in sscrowand recosded = an asset om the balmor sheet.

mcm-ma.zzz lddmmd warats %o the same serviee provida duning 2018 with an exexcise price of S1.50 pershare. The wazants arc evercisablk upon the date of gant through the comtractual tam of § yars. The
C idance and de meod that the arc ligbility dassified The fair valoe ofthe wanats was dekerminad 10 be 54,362 with the ramaiming net proceeds fram the Reg A filing allocatedto equity. The
-mlﬁity will be remeasured at fair value each wxparting peniod. The setllanent of the wasrant liabikty will occuronoe all the warrants have cither been exarcised ar expire and will nol require the Company 1o pay cash.

During 2018, the Company issued 313,335 shaxes of commaon stock %0 variows serviee providars in exchange for savices pafoemed for the Company. These shares ware valued by e Company o the commaon stock of Tering price in its

Regulstion A o [Serings liveat the time of @ach issumce, ran ging from S1.00 0 51.50 per share Total P m CXpaTs ¢ ded for the yearended Decamber 31, 2018 under these arrangements was S 360,003

During 2018, the Campany tssued 331,900 shares of common stock at S1.00 per share for gross pooceds of $331,900. Two of these ¢ ncluded %o purchase 3 %otal 0f 105,000 shares of common stock &t @ exercise price
of $1.00 per share. The wumcmntkwh:&knl’p:lﬁmn@ktm:dmlmofl)ruTk(.mwly wdered ting guidance and d ined that the arc equily classilied. The fairvaloe of the
wazants was desermined 1o be 511,226, which was netied from the gxoss pr dsin ng these stock i %0 additiomal paid-in capital.

Stock Ontion Plan

During 2017 the Company adopedthe 2017 Employes and Consul tant Stock Ownesship Plan (2017 Plan”). The Campany may issuc awards up o a max imum of 6,000,000 commeon shares i the fom of restricted stock wits and stock
options 10 anplo yees, dirackrs, and comsultamts

On October 21, 201 7 the Company sswed 2,230,954 stockoptions o amployess and l Each option was filly vested om the date of grant with an exacise price of $1.00and expix 10 ycars from the dae of grant. The Company
valued the stock oplioms using the Black-Scholes mode] with the following ass umptions: stock price - S100; evercise pace - S1.00; expected tam - § years; volatility - 100 6%, 1isk free yicld - 2.03%: dividend rate - (%6 The grant dasxe
fuirvalue for the opticers was S1,678,30 | which was recarded as stock based compensation for e yar ended Decanber 31, 2017,

During 2018, the Campamy wssued 762, 346 stock options 1o consu ¥ants Each option was fully vested an the date of grant with exercise prices nnging between $1.00 10 §1.50. Each option gzant expines 10 years fiom thedale of gmnt
The Company valued the stock options wsing the Black-Scholes model withthe [ollowing assumptions: expected erm - § yeass; volatility - B6_5%; risk frec yickd between 2 693 and 3.14% (depending on the date of grant); dividend rake
~ (%% stock price of $1.00 ar S1.50 (besed om the price per share availad ke 1o the public trough the applicable Reg A offering): exacis price of dther S1.0007S1 50 The grnt dake fairvaloe for the cptions was S558,50 8 which was
recarded as stock-based compensation fer the yearended Deaember 31, 2018

During 2019, $e Compamy issucd an additional 1,686 970 stock options and w0 and " The Company waloed the stock options and warrals using the same ptions as used fir thei n 2018, The
grant dake fairvalue for the oplionsand warrants was 51,796, ll!-h&vumd:dasiwkhxdmpmnm foethe nmdzs ended June 30, 2019.
NoteS - Relited Party Tramsactiens

Sec Nowes 2and 3 fir dischosure of relatad party sevol vimg lineo [credit and comventidl e nokes.

1n addition, an October 1,2015, the Campany da e with its found o and stodkho k. The comsu Ming agroement with the Company provides that if and whenthe Company receives 520 million or more i
mvestments from third partics (excloding further mvestment fiom m fvmdn‘). the foundar will receive compansation totaling $240,000 i xcognition of savics & (hairman, President and Searctary parlonncd between Jemvary 1,
2014 and December 31, 2015,

XT1 AIRCRAFT COMPANY
Notes to Finand al Ststements
Neje S - Reloied Party Transacliens (centinved)

The Company akso conducts busi with avendar that is owned by ane ofthe Campanry 's officers and stockholders and k ides the Company with ng CFO work For the six months ended June 30, 2019 nd 2018,
lh(.nnpmypndh vendar S 11,300 and 527,182, respectively. The Company owed this vendar S38,000 and S34, 500as of June 30.2019»4 Decamber 31, 2018, mp«u\ﬂy

The Company conducts business with ane ofthe Company s oflicess and Board members who cumrently serves as the Company's CEO. Forthe six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Company paid this vendor $106,268 and
§165,326, respectively. The Compamy owed this vendar § 170,974 and 5100,974 as of Junc 30, 2019 and Decamber 31, 2018.

The Company conducts business with 3 numbcrof vendars and comsultants that bold commaon stock. options and / or warants in the Company that po vide vasious savioes in the nommal course of operations. The Campanyowed these
vendors $351,744 and §313,435 as of Jume 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, xspectively



Note6-Subseguent Events
The Company {lied an amended Faum 1+ A with the Secunities and Exch C mxion ("SEC) m oxder %0 oxtend it o flering of common stock ofup 10 522 S milion. Thiso Mering was qualificd by the SEC on Septembaer 16, 2019.

INDEXTO EXHIBITS

Eshibz 6 Axrsement wih Acuity Advisans (12)

Exhibii6.9 = =T - . . =
Exhibit 610 Prenisory Note with Jeflecy Pimo -~ Sepiamber 30, 2015(14)
) s o S il Poo D ber11.2015 (15)

(1) Filed a5 an exhibit %o the campany’s Fonn FA avadlable here,
Betps wwwesee gov/ A xchi ves edigar data/ 1 63 8BS0 000164 46001 S000027/ exh i €2-1 ham.

2) Rkdas an cxhibit %o thecompany's Form 1-A avalable here,
Botpsl www.sec. gov/ A schi ves ‘edigar data/ 1638850000164 46001 000027/ ex hibi 2-2 hem.

{3) Filkedas an exhibit o the company'’s Form 1-A availible heru,
Botps/ www. s gov/ A chi ves ‘edigardata/ 163 8BS0 000164 46001 SO00027/ exh i t2-4. bem.

{4) Rkedas an exhibit o the company's Form 1-A availible hewe,
betps:fwwwsce gov/A cchives fedigasdata/] 638ES0/000164 46001 S000027/exhibie2-3 hem.

{5) Fikdas an exhidbit to thecompmny's Foen 1-Aavailable here,
Bt woww sec gov/ A i ves) edigar dutyf 163BES0 0001 1442041904 4535w 5294 14_cxd bam.

(6) Fiked as an cxhibit %o the company’s Fona 1-Aavailable hewe,
Botpt wwwsee gov/ A i ves ‘edigar data/ 163 BBS01000164 46001 000027/ exh dith-1 bam

{7) Fikdas an exhibit to the company'’s Form 1-A available hewe,
Bt www.sec gov/ Axchi ves edgar data/ 163 8BS0 000164 46001 000027 exhibi 062 ham.

(8) Filed as an exhibit to the company's Fona 1-A avalble hew,
Betprl www. s o/ A o hi v fod gar'data/ 163 8BS0 000164 46001 S0 00027/ exhbies-3 e,

{9) Fikd as an exhidbit to thecompany’s Fomn 1-A avalable here,
Bt wowwcs oo govi A o ves edgar data/ 1 61BES0 000164 46001 S000027/ ex b 05-4.bam.

{10) Filed as an exhibit %0 the campany’sFarm 1+ A available hexe,
Botpt wwwsac gov/ A hi ves'od gar data/ 163 8BS0 000164 46001 000027/ exh i th 5. ham.

{11 )Fikd as an exhibit to the campany s Farm 1-A avadabk here,
Bt pl wowwsoc. gov/ Aschi ves ‘edigar dutof 1638850000164 46001 S000027! exhioi 6.6 bam

{12) Filed as n exhibit % the company’s Farm 1-A available hese,
Bt/ www sec gov/ Axchi ves edgar data/ 1638850 000164 46001 000027 exh i 857 ..

{13) Flked as s exhibit %0 the company™s Form 1+ A availble heme,
Betpstl wwwsee gov/ A xchi ves cdgar duta' 1638850000164 46001 000027/ exhiith9 ham.

{14) Fiked = an exhibit %0 the company’s Form 1-A availble heme,
Betpst wwwsee gov/A schi ves fedigas’data’ 1638850 /000164 46001 S000027/exhiith-1 Qe

{15) Filed as an exhibit %0 the company’s Farm 1A avadlable here,
Botpl wwwsee gov/ Aschi ves cdigar data/ 163 8BS0/000164 46001 6000066! cxhiish] | hem

{16) Filed = an ¢ xhibit %0 the company’s Form 1-K available bere,
Betps wwwesee gov/ Axchi ves ‘edigar data/ 163850000164 4600 17000075 exhioi 6+ 1 2 bem.

{17) Filed = an exhibit %0 the company’s Farm 1-K available bere,
Betgf wwwsee pov/A xhives'cdgarilat /16188 0000164 46001 7000075/ exhie- 13 ham.

{18) Fiked as an exhibit %0 the compaay’s Form 1-K avadable here,
Betps wwws oo gov/ A schives ‘edigar data/ 163885070001 1442041 B02 40441492480 _ex+ 14 .

{19) Filed as an oxhwbit %0 the company’s Farm 1-K available bere,
hotpl wwws oo gov/ Axchi ves'cdigas dutaf 163885070001 1442041 BO24044 1492480 _cx6- 15 ham.

{20) Fiked & an exhibit %0 the company’s Farm 1-A avaibible heme,
Bt Pwwws o gov/ Archives'edgar daty’ 16388 S0000 1144204 wmmmt;szs‘l:fm 16 m.

{21) Pkd = @ cxhidit 0 1 company’s I'arm 1 -K availablk bere,
Botpl wwws e gov/ A rchi ves \odgar data/ 163BES00001 14420419024 0204 vS20084_ex6-17 .



{22) Fiked as an exhibit %0 e company's Form LK availsbke bere,
htpsl www. sec. gow/ Archi ves' edgan data/ 16388500001 144204 190240201 vS 20084 _exé&18him

{23) Fiked #s an exhibit %0 e company's Form 1A avaibsb ke bese,
bl wwwsiec. gow Ax: hi ves edgardata) 16388 500001 6446001 S000027/ exh it (T ham.

SIGNATURES

Pomsusnt %0 the mguinements of Regalstion A, the tssoer hiss duly cawsed this Semi -Anmess] Repont %0 be signed on its bebulfl by the endasigned. thereunto duly awthorized.
XTI Aimraft Company

By David £ Brody,

Sigmatare: A/ David E. Brody
Chaemun of e Bowd

Date-Septamber 24, 2019

This serni-anmess | report hus been signed by the following persors in the capucitics and on the dees indicaxd.

/s/ David E. Brody
Duvid E. Brody, Presideotund Cazmman

Date Septamber 24,2019

/s Robert J. LaBelle
Robert ], LaBelle, CEOQ and Dreaia

Date: September 24, 2019

s/ Andmw Woglom

Andrew Woglom, Chief Fmancial Oicer and Chicd Accounting O fTer

Duasc: Scperniber 24,2019

s/ Paud Wilkard
Pad Wilkard, Director

Duse: Sepremnber 24,2019
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This offering is not live or open to the public at this moment.

XTI Aircraft
he future is now. Lift Up. Jet Out.

$0- 00 raised 0

0 98
Robb Report ‘ : ; Investors Days Left
‘A Better Way to Fly' :
$1.50 $51.5Mm
Price per Share Valuation
Equity $450.00

Offering Type Min. Investment

INVEST NOW

@® Wwebsite Q9 Greenwood Village, CO TRANSPORTATION
This Offering is eligible
for the StartEn
Thi g ) noee ovel e
rougt “opnte.
Overview Team Terms Updates Comments ) Follow

If you are looking for opportunity
you've landed in the right place

Welcome to XTl Aircraft Company. Our revolutionary TriFan €00 Hybrid Electric
Vertical Take-Off and Landing aircraft Changes Everything! It's a big opportunity
to revolutionize air travel. There’s a significant unmet need in the aircraft market
—and we have the only viable way to fili it. Those who invest now will own a piece
of XTI and will have the opportunity to benefit as we grow and achieve our
milestones. We invite you to leam more and join us on this joumey.

Solving a Problem

Successful businesses solve problems. They make customers' lives easier. And
that's exactly what the TriFan 600 is all about. We are filling a market need - door-



to-door air travel over long distances - in ways no other aircraft possibly can.

Ourresearch indicates that no commerdal aircraft of any kind can fly directly
from point Ato paint Bwiththerange, speed, or comfort of the TriFan 600 vertical
takeo ff airplane. Similarly, our research indicates that no helicopter can match the
performance of the TriFan €00 and no business jet can land in your backyard! This
is a new type of aircraft, with an entirely new combination of capabilities that are
unique in the market.

Ourinital target market for the TriFan €00 is business aviaton, dty © city
commuter customers and private individuals. Business |et Traveler magazine
says that people fly privately to (1) save tme, and (2) gain access to destinations
not served byairlines. The TriFan 600 accomplishes both objectives.

The TriFan 600 can save each person hundreds of hours a year by not having to
travel 0 and from airports by ground transportation. For business people, every
wasted hour due to travel ime has an inherent opportunity cost, and that's why
aircraft owners pay millions more for time and convenience. But as shown in the
figure below, the speed of an aircraft does not always equal more time saved, and
the we believe the TriFan will completely tump conventional business jes and
helicopters in this regard.

TriFan 600 versus Helicopter on a 353 Mile Flight”

Helcopter
{120 1 < i}

TriFan 600
(310 kt cruise)

Y \

Lo Anlggeles The TriFan 600 is faster | Flagstafi
and has greater range,

saving 2.3 hours
over the helicopter, which has to refuel

*One piot and fve passengers

The TriFan 600 Mew ork

saves 1.6 hours

by eliminating travel to |
and from an airport

“One 10t 30 Two plssoQors

Chicago



’ Investment Outlook

Prior to its launch, XTI commissioned detailed market studies that reported a
strong potential market and ongoing demand for the TriFan 600.

These studies, conducted by prominent aviation market research firms, give us
reason to be bullish on the future. Globally there are over 60,000 business
airplanes and helicopters in operation. Based on market trends and projected
demand for fast, unway-free transportation, experts say XT| can expect to
annually sell a minimum of 40 and up to 100 TriFan 600s, each priced at $6-
8million.

In addition to the crowdfunding and other fundraising efforts currently underway,
XTlinitated a pre-sales program in 2017. Already we have over 80 orders! Buyers
are able to make a refundable deposit ranging from $10,000 to $25,000 per
aircraft, reserve their place in line, and retain that priority position as the
company reaches commercial production of the TriFan 600. With as few as 100
orders, the gross revenues of XTI represented by those orders would be over
$600m.

Why Invest?

We have quantified market demand through our pre-sales program, begun
construdion of a flying prototype, and received our second patent, demonstrating
solid progress along the paths outlined in our plan.

All members of XTI's management are shareholders in the company and highly
motvated and incentivized to increase the company's value and create a path to
liquidity and a marketfor all shareholders, including those who invest through
Regulation CF crowdfunding financing. XTI will continually assess and explore
ways to achieve liquidity for all shareholders, including potentially making shares
tradeable in the secondary market, strategic relationships with publicly traded
aircraft companies, and examining whether an initial public offering should be
part of the company's financing strategy within the next fewyears. We believe
these are all realistic and viable optons.

Path to Profitability

We believe the XTI business pian includes a realistic path to profitability when
targets are met. Qurrent priorities are (1) financing initatives, (2) flying the
prototype in 2020, and (3} continuing discussions with potential vendors, parmers,
and suppliers for the full test program and production aircraft



Development Timeline
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Impressive Performance

. Six-foot
Max Vertica Take-off: 2,404Kg / 5,3001bs ducted fan
Max Short Take-off: 2,858Kg/ 6.3001bs diameter
Empty Weight: 1,588Kg / 3,5001bs
S »1
assengers 5 plus 1 Plot
Vertical Take-off: 816Kg/ 1,800 1Ibs
Short Take-off: 1,270%g/ 2,800 |bs \

%\

| 38-foot wing span

Fuel: 473 Uters/ 125 Gallons
Max Cruise Speed: 556 kph / 300 knots

(® 300 knots cruise)

Five{foot
Max payload/vertical take-off: 1,237 km/ 668 nm ducted fan
Pilot onlyfvertical take-off: 1422km /768 nm diameter
CTOL Max Range 2,222km / 1,200nm

Performance Features:

Max cruls e altitude: 8,840 Meters/ 29,000 feet



Achieve max cruizse altitude:r 11 minutes

XTI

irarRaen e

Propretary and Corddental lormation XT1 Arcraft Company

The TriFan 600 is a six-seat, vertica! takeoff and |anding airplane. It isnotbased
on new technology, but it takes existing technology and appliesitin a
revolutionary configuration. We believe this reduces risks assocdiated with
manufacturing and obtaining FAA certification.

features will include ample cabin space, easily configured with muitiple options.

How It Werks
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IRIEAN 600

The first VTOL airpl

designed specifically

business aviation

|
»

Using three ducted fans, the TriFan 600 will off vertically. In seconds, the two wing
fans rotate forward for a seamless transition to high-speed flight. And within just
90 seconds, the aircraft will reach cruising speed - where, like every other fixed-

wing airplane, the wings provide lift. The fusel age-mounted fan, no longer
needed, willclose up. The airplane will fly directly to is destination and reverses
the process, landing vertically nght where it needs to be - over a clear helipad
sized paved surface, a golf course, backyard, job site, or thousands of other
locations around the world where it's safe and legal to land and takeoff.

Advances intechnologies overcome historical challenges
Result is greater performance and increased safety

Three Three 6 Foot Diameter Ducted Far
= Forward Pivoting Fans for VTOL ,
Generators » Closing body fan door for efficient forw,
« Drive the electnic
motors
Ad_vanced * Redundant system
Flight

Controls > . ‘ 1.100 SHP Engine

« Easierto Fly - * More Power, Lighter Welght

« Stability - - *Mare Rellatle
Enhancement - - * More Fuel Efficient

—

Dual Electric Motors
= Two par fan, 250 kw each
Provide 1.30 trust factor

Design Technology

* Computationa Fiuld Dynamics (CFD) Carbon Flber &

+ Finite Element Analysis (FEA) Epoxy Structure
* Computer Aided Design |CAD) » Lightar weight
’n’ * Enhances confiden cs and schedule « Greater design flex: bility

Propretary and Corddental nformaton X1 Arcraft Company

THESE MATERIALS MAY CONTAIN FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND
INFORMATION RELATING TO, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE COMPANY, ITS
BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGY AND ITS INDUSTRY. THESE FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS ARE BASED ON THE BELIEFS OF, ASSUMPTIONS MADE BY, AND



INFORMATION CURRENTLY AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANYS MANAGEMENT.
WHEN USED IN THE OFFERING MATERIALS, THE WORDS "ESTIMATE,” "PROJECT.”
"BELIEVE," "ANTICIPATE,” "INTEND,” “EXPECT* AND SIMILAR EXPRESSIONS ARE
INTENDED TO IDENTIFY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, WHICH CONSTITUTE
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. THESE STATEMENTS REFLECT MANAGEMENTS
CURRENT VIEWS WITH RESPECT TO FUTURE EVENTS AND ARE SUBJECT TO RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES THAT COULD CAUSE THE COMPANY’'S ACTUAL RESULTS TO
DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE CONTAINED IN THE FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS. INVESTORS ARE CAUTIONED NOT TO PLACE UNDUE RELIANCE ON
THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, WHICH SPEAK ONLY AS OF THE DATE
ON WHICH THEY ARE MADE. THE COMPANY DOES NOT UNDERTAKE ANY
OBLIGATION TO REVISE OR UPDATE THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS TO
REFLECT EVENTS OR CIRCUMSTANCES AFTER SUCH DATE OR TO REFLECT THE
OCCURRENCE OF UNANTICIPATED EVENTS.

In the Press

AVIATION WEEK

| SHOW MORE |

Meet Our Team

David Brody

Founder, Chairman, President,
Secretary and Director

fe Pecdiboc bad c il lonc cosaleon faa



MI. bBrogy Nas NGOG G Mje-10Ng DAssIon Jor
atraraft, science and technology. Beginnmng in
2012, he developed the TriFan configuration
and basic performance objectives, organized
XTi as a Delaware corporation, and fifed for
patents. After developing the company’s
basic strategic plan, he recruited XTI Boord
members and executive and engineering
team. Mr. Brody was aiso the founder of an
advanced lechnology helicopter company in
2005 (AVX Aircraft Cempany), and served as
Chairman and CEO of AVX and remains on
the AVX board. He has practiced iow in
Denver with Hogan Lovells US LLP from
Jjanuary 2013 to the present. Prior Lo that
time he was a partner in Patton Boggs, LLP,
another international low firm, for 14 years.
He has several patents issued in his name
for inventions in a¥craft technology and
other fields, and has writlen three books,
inciuding a national Book-of the-Month Club
best selfer on science and technology, *The
Science Class You Wish You Had, The Seven
Greatest Saentific Discoveries in History and
the People Who Made Them™ (Putnam
Berkeley, New York 1997, 2nd edition, 2013).
Mr. Brody spends up to 10 hours per week
working with XTI, but ¢an surge to more on

an as needed basis.

¥

Robert LaBelle
Chief Executive Officer and
Director
Mr. LaBelle joined XTi 6s its
Chief Executive Officer in
February 2017 after spending
the prior three years as CEO of
AgustaWestiand North America.
Prior to that, Mr. LaBeHle served
as President of AgustaWestiand
Titrotor Company, the company
supporting development of the
AW 609 Tiltrotor. He joined
AgustaWestiond in 2004 after a
career in the U.S Nowy where he
was program manager for
severa! aircraft, including the E-
2 Hawkeye, (-2 Greyhound, FIA-
18 Foregn Military Soles, and S-
38 Viking.

®0

Andrew Woglom
Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Accounting Officer
Mr. Wogliom has diverse
experience in investment
banking, private equity and
operations. From 2009 to 2013,
he was Chief Anancial Officer
for the NEK group of companies
(NEK), an international portfolio
of businesses spanning aviation,
defense contraating,
const ruction, softwore
development start-ups and réal
estate holdings. He led NEK'S
stockholders through a
sticcessful exit in 2012. Ffrom
2013 to present, Mr. Wogiom
has worked as a consultant,
assisting dients with strotegic
planning, operationa!
mmprovements, MEA
transactions and capital raising.
Prior to NEK he was a Vice
President ot Gailagher

Charlie Johnson

COO & Board Member
The former president and chief
operating officer of Cessna
brings to XTi more than 35 years
of experience in toplevel
avialion management and
strategy, operations and
production. He was aiso
Cessna’s vice president of
agircraft complietion and product
supporl, senior wice president of
operations, and execulive vce
president of operations, feading
development, certifications and
product support of new
airplanes. He aiso was chief
ptiot for Arnold Palmer. johnson
began his auation career after
completing U.S. Air Force piot
troining in 1968 and
occumulated over 1,000 hours
of military flight time in the F-
105, serving in combat in
Southeast Asin Inhnson

Paul willard

Director
Poui Wiilard is a SHicon Valley
Engmeer and Tech Investor. Poul
has served as g Partner at two
venture capitol funds,
Subtraction Capital and Storm
Ventures. He helped start
Subtraction Capital, where he
focused on being very involved
with the startups that the fund
inwested in, mentoring across
product, engineering and
marketing efforts. For 14 years
prior to being an investor, Paul
was G product and marketing
executive ot 4 tech startups. He
was ChiefMarketing Officer at
Atigssian and Practice Fusion,
head of product and marketing
ot Coupons.com, and Director of
Produd Managgement at
NextCard. Through these efforts,
he gained extensive experience
huildine and marketing Awer.



Industries from 2004 to 2009, a
Denver based private equity
firm. Before thal, from 2000 to
2004, he spent several years in
New York in investment banking
at both Tri Artisan Partners and
at Lehman Brothers. In addition
Lo his rofe at X1, he is currently
(and has been since 2013} the
principal of Acuity Adwisors, LLC
a CFO and advisory senices
company offering strategic
guidance in accounting and
finance to ciients. Mr. Wogiom
spends up to 10 hours per week
working with XTi, but can surge
to more on an 0s needed basis.

s 4 e e g e wa

currently serves as president
and chief operating officer of
Aero Electric Arcraft
Corporation.

Robert Denehy

Director
Mr Denehy 15 the General
Manager of Aerogulf Services, g
commercial helicopter operator
and maintenance facility iocated
in Dubai. Mr. Denehy has been
with Aeroguif Services since July
1995. At Aerogulf, Mr. Denehy
oversees aif engineering and
operations for a company that
prowdes support Lo offshore oif
and gas operalions in the
United Arab Emirates and
throughout North Africa. Prior
to Aerogulf, Mr. Denehy served
as a US Air Force Inteifigence
Officer.

Offering Summary

Company : XTI Aircraft Company

Ll - I L L LT prr ST

growth web and mobile
applications for iarge-scaie
markets. He began his career as
an Aerodynamics Engineer for
more than six years al The
Boeing Company, acguiring
critical skifs in aircraft design,
data analysis, and testing. His
work inciuded commerciol and
miitary aircraft as weif as VTOL
and gutonomous aircraft. He
has more than 25 years of
technoiogy experience in
product design, anaiysis and
distabution. Mr. Willard holds a
Bacheior of Science in Aerospace
Engineering from iowa State
University, a Masters of Science
in Manufacturing Systems
Engineening from Stanford
University, and an EM.B.A from
Singularity University.

Corporate Address = 2209 Green Oaks Lane, Greenwood
" Village, CO 80121

Offering Minimum : $9,995.00



Offering Maximum : $1,065,595.50

Minimum Investment Amount ) $450.00
(per investor) '

Terms

Offering Type : Equity
Security Name : Common Stock

Minimum Number of Shares
Offered 6,666

Maximum Number of Shares

Offered 713,343

Price per Share : $1.50
Pre-Money Valuation : $51,470,577.00

*Maximum Number of Shares Offered subjed Lo adjustment for bonus shares. See Bonus info befow
Bonus shares based on timing

If you invest in the first 30 days you get 10% bonus shares

If yous invest in the second 30 days you get 5% bonus shares

Bonus shares based on amountinvested

If you invest over $2.500 you get 5% bonus shares

If you invest over $5,000 you get 10% bonus shares

If you invest over $10,000 you get 15% bonus shares

The 10% Bonus for StartEngine Shareholders

XT1 Aircraft Company will offer 10% addtional bonus shares for all investments that are committed
by investors that are eligible for the StartEngine Crowdfunding Inc. CWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartE ngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares they purchase
in this offering. For example, if you buy 100 shares of Common Stock at $1.50 / share, you will
receive 110 Common Stock shares, meaning you'll own 110 shares for $150. Fractional shares will
not be distributed and share bonuses will be determined by rounding down to the nearest whole
share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investors eligibilty period. Investors eligibie for this bonus
will also have priority if they are on a waithst to invest and the company surpasses its maximum
funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest should room in the offering become
available if prior investments are cancelled or fail.

Investors will only receive a single bonus, which will be the highest bonus rate they are eligible for.

Irregular Use of Proceeds

The Company might incur Irregular Use of Proceeds that may include but are not limited to the
following over $10,000: vendor payments. Any expense labeled ‘Travel and Entertatnment”.

Offering Details

Form C Filings




Risks

C SHOW MORE )

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless you

can afford to lose your entire investment. In making an investment decision, investors must rely on

their own examination of the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks
involved. These securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state
securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authoriti es have not passed upon
the accuracy or adequacy of this document. The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not
pass upon the merits of any securities offered or the terms of the offering nor does it pass upon the
accuracy or completeness of any offering document or literature. These securities are offered under
an exempti on from registration; however, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission has not
made an independent determination thatthese securities are exempt from registration.

Follow XT1 Aircraft to get notified of future updates!
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Important Message

INMAXING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTDRS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMNATION OF THE ISSUERAND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUBING THE
MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED INVESTMENTS DN STARTENGINE ARE SPECULATIVE, ILLIOUID, ANDINVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF RIS, INCLUDING THE POSSIBLE LOSS
OF YOUR ENTIRE INVESTMENT.

www StanEngine comis a wabsite awned and oparated by StantEngineCrowdfunding, Inc ("StartEngineg”), which is nather a registared broker-dealer investiment advisor
nerfunding pertal.

Unlessindicated otherwi sewith respect to a particulari ssuer, all secu ities-related act vty is conducted by regulated atfiliatesof StaitEngine StartEngine Capial, LLC,a
funding portal registered here with the US Secunties and Exchange Commission (SEC) and [e(e as a mamber of the Financial Industry Regulato ty Authority (FINRA), of
StartEngine Primary, LLC, a broker-dealsr registered with the SEC and FINRA/SIPC. You canreview the background of our broker-gealer and our investment professionals
on FINRAS BrokerCheck here

Investment opportunities postad and accessible through the ste are of three types

1) Regulation A offenings (JOBS Act Title [V, known as Regulation A+), which are offered to non-accreddad and accredited investors akke These offerings are made
through StartEngine Primaty, LLC (unless otherwise indicated) 2) Regulation D offerings (Rule SD6(c)), which are offerad only to accredited investars These offenngs are
made thicugh StarftEng ne Primaty, LLC. 3) Regulation Crowdfunding offerings (JOBS Act Tille 1), which are offerad to non-accredited and accradited investors alike.
These offerings are made through StartEngine Capital LLC. Some of theseoffenngs are open to the general public, however there are importantdifferencesand risks

Any secunties offerad on this website have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state secunties commission of regulatory authority StartEngine and
its afliliates do not provide any investment advice of recommendation and do not provide any legalor tax adwee with respect to any securities. Al securities listed on
this site are being offered by, and all informationincluded on this Site 15 the responsibi ity of, the apphcable ssuer of such secunties. StartEngine does not verity the
acdequady, accuracy orcompleteness of any information. Nather StartEngine nor any of its offcers, directors, agentsand employees makes any warranty, express or
impked, of any kind what soever related to the adequacy,accuracy, or completeness of any infarmation on this site o the use of information on this site. See additional
general disclosures here

By accessing this ste and any pages on this site, you agrea to be bound by owr Term s of Use and Puyvacy Policy, as may be amandad from Lime to time without notice of
liability.

Canadian Investors
Investment opportunities po sted and accessible thio ugh the site will not ke offered to Canadian resident investor s

Potermal investors are strongly advise dro consult their legal, tax and financial advisors before inve sting. The securite s offered on this site are not offered in
Jjurisdictons where publ ¢ solicitadon for offe rings is not pe rmitted; itis solely your responsiblity to comply with the laws and regulations of your country of
residence.




EXHIBIT D TO FORM C

VIDEO TRANSCRIPT

00:02

When we first looked to the skies

00:08

we saw another world, the world has stood
00:14

above us we couldn't touch it. It was
00:21

beyond our reach but there's a funny
00:24

thing about curiosity, the vehicle that
00:28

drives our very existence it does not
00:32

stop craving what it does not understand.
00:37

It delves headfirst into the unknown
00:41

stumbling, searching. Our greatest

00:49

strength is that we do not fear the

00:55

unknown.

00:57

We yearn to become one with it. Our wings

01:06



aided us in the basic human instinct to
01:12

unite. We persisted to perfect our
01:18

voyaging and we worked tirelessly at
01:21

perfecting it because we knew that it
01:25

would help our fellow Wanderers. And like
01:32

the curiosity of those before us, we will
01:39

continue to find a better way. A better
01:43

way to thrive,

01:46

to see

01:49

and most importantly,

01:58

to reach.



STARTENGINE SUBSCRIPTION PROCESS (Exhibit E)

Platform Compensation

e As compensation for the services provided by StartEngine Capital, the issuer is required to
pay to StartEngine Capital a fee consisting of a 6-8% (six to eight percent) commission
based on the dollar amount of securities sold in the Offering and paid upon disbursement
of funds from escrow at the time of a closing. The commission is paid in cash and in
securities of the Issuer identical to those offered to the public in the Offering at the sole
discretion of StartEngine Capital. Additionally, the issuer must reimburse certain
expenses related to the Offering. The securities issued to StartEngine Capital, if any, will
be of the same class and have the same terms, conditions and rights as the securities being
offered and sold by the issuer on StartEngine Capital’s website.

Inf ion Regarding Length of Time of Offeri

e [nvestment Cancellations: Investors will have up to 48 hours prior to the end of the
offering period to change their minds and cancel their investment commitments for any
reason. Once within 48 hours of ending, investors will not be able to cancel for any reason,
even if they make a commitment during this period.

e Material Changes: Material changes to an offering include but are not limited to: A
change in minimum offering amount, change in security price, change in management,
material change to financial information, etc. If an issuer makes a material change to the
offering terms or other information disclosed, including a change to the offering deadline,
investors will be given five business days to reconfirm their investment commitment. If
investors do not reconfirm, their investment will be cancelled and the funds will be
returned.

Hitting The T. coal Early & Q bscrinti

e StartEngine Capital will notify investors by email when the target offering amount has hit
25%, 50% and 100% of the funding goal. If the issuer hits its goal early, and the minimum
offering period of 21 days has been met, the issuer can create a new target deadline at
least 5 business days out. Investors will be notified of the new target deadline via email
and will then have the opportunity to cancel up to 48 hours before new deadline.

e Oversubscriptions: We require all issuers to accept oversubscriptions. This may not be
possible if: 1) it vaults an issuer into a different category for financial statement
requirements (and they do not have the requisite financial statements); or 2) they reach
$1.07M in investments. In the event of an oversubscription, shares will be allocated at the
discretion of the issuer.

e [f the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the target offering
amount at the offering deadline, no securities will be sold in the offering, investment
commitments will be cancelled and committed funds will be returned.

e [f a StartEngine issuer reaches its target offering amount prior to the deadline, it may
conduct an initial closing of the offering early if they provide notice of the new offering
deadline at least five business days prior to the new offering deadline (absent a material
change that would require an extension of the offering and reconfirmation of the
investment commitment). StartEngine will notify investors when the issuer meets its



target offering amount. Thereafter, the issuer may conduct additional closings until the
offering deadline.

EI.. III . l E

e [n order to invest, to commit to an investment or to communicate on our platform, users
must open an account on StartEngine Capital and provide certain personal and non-
personal information including information related to income, net worth, and other
investments.

e [nvestor Limitations: Investors are limited in how much they can invest on all
crowdfunding offerings during any 12-month period. The limitation on how much they
can invest depends on their net worth (excluding the value of their primary residence) and
annual income. If either their annual income or net worth is less than $107,000, then
during any 12-month period, they can invest up to the greater of either $2,200 or 5% of the
lesser of their annual income or net worth. If both their annual income and net worth are
equal to or more than $107,000, then during any 12-month period, they can invest up to
10% of annual income or net worth, whichever is less, but their investments cannot exceed
$107,000.



